it
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-_TThE+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5E FHExT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FEHA Interest income 6 1,338,301 1,825,214
FEEZH Interest expense 7 (300,594) (1,115,364)
EREWA Net interest income 1,037,707 709,850
Heb U A Other income 8 231,588 102,100
ey A Operating income 1,269,295 811,950
ey Operating expenses 9 (157,836) (141,749)
RETRE AT HY S 2085 T Operating profit before impairment 1,111,459 670,201
BRRE R, (B Write-back of loan impairment allowances
/(loan impairment charge) 12 36,837 (36,225)
R A Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
B A& AR F (E518) Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture 23 1,922 8)
FRBE Al g A Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
I8 Taxation 13(a) (144,186) (28,974)
254 B R Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
EREF (BE) : Profit/(loss) attributable to:
ZNYNGTE Equity holders of the Company 1,006,469 604,994
VR PR RE IR R Non-controlling interest (437) =
1,006,032 604,994
BIRERE Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000

F121Z207 EFTH M AR A MIEHREA —3F  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Aok 2 B R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HBLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5% FER FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
AR & A Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
Hig2mEua : Other comprehensive income:
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities:
- REIHUES  (F518)F58 - unrealised net gains/(losses) 32 227,272 (147,960)
- BEBRWEFELY — net reclassification adjustments for
BN EARFE realised net gains 32 (3,522) (24,329)

- HIA - tax effect 32 (37,311) 29,907

— iy - amortization 32 2,381 338
W MEH Cash flow hedges:

- BEEERERERE — net gains/(losses) arising on hedges

Hmzs, (B1R) F8 recognized directly in equity 32 25,126 (86,497)

- HIA - tax effect 32 (4,145) 14,338
HME G IN TS E R Exchange differences on translation of

W =5 foreign operations

- M B Al — subsidiary 157 =

-&&nd — joint venture 32 1,279 (8,557)
NS H M2 Other comprehensive income for the year,

EMBBE net of tax 211,237  (222,760)
AEEZHEHKRZAE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,217,269 382,234
EiE2mEmRE4A5E Total comprehensive income attributable to:

ViN/NETL) 358 Equity holders of the Company 1,217,707 382,234

V8 12 | R AR R Non-controlling interest (438) =

1,217,269 382,234

F121Z207 EFTE T AR MIEM®MERA —56  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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A B R DL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZTZERF+_A=+—8H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5 FET FH&T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EE ASSETS
ReMEHEs Cash and short-term funds 17 4,067,798 3,093,258
JiE W FI) B K T X Interest and remittance receivables 18 710,530 1,334,485
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,317,375 2,237,526
BERHEEFRE Loan portfolio, net 20 43,788,716 = 50,760,112
BEEERE Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
- A 22 H] — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
AENRIRE Investment in a joint venture 23 115,190 113,532
& E & &= Fixed assets 24 21,257 14,302
TENZIE HENEMEE  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 32,595 30,555
RIEHIAEE Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,904
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
EEHE Total assets 59,750,624 65,628,334
=L LIABILITIES
JE A FILE Interest payable 445,787 469,965
FEERIE - BRI R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
Hia i other liabilities 26 4,274,177 4,183,693
PTESRMTAE Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
FE T 18 Tax payable 13(b) 138,329 47,866
REHIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,209 -
R EE Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
SNE S B Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BETEBES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 42,814,988
EBITIRBEF Mortgage-backed securities issued 30 2,020,394 3,225,624
BEERAE Total liabilities 53,009,533 59,865,870
EE EQUITY
BEmEE ABGERAR Capital and reserves attributable to
N the equity holders:
[N Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
1R s Retained profits 3,925,694 3,485,513
[ P& 2% 5 Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
N ERE Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
R Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
b H Translation reserve 32 (7,120) (8,557)
K I B Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
6,730,171 5,762,464
R R R R Non-controlling interest in equity 10,920 =
R Total equity 6,741,091 5,762,464
EERAEAE Total equity & liabilities 59,750,624 65,628,334

FEBEA-T—THENA=+ AREREE
F77 -

#=% NormanT.L.Chan
e Deputy Chairman

F£121 2207 B FTH M T Air A IS HRERN — 30
5‘7\ °
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¥ 8% Pang Sing Tong, Peter
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LRI
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZEZhF+=—A=+—H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
o= FET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
HekEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 3,924,752 @ 3,054,735
JRE L) 2, B2 B SR Interest and remittance receivables 18 698,809 1,322,591
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,273,102 2,159,479
BERBEEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 40,817,163 46,678,285
BHEE Investment securities:
-AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
- e =3 H — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
B A RRE Investment in subsidiaries 22 1,733,580 2,210,981
BENRIRE Investment in a joint venture 23 120,554 122,097
& E & &= Fixed assets 24 19,000 14,302
FENFIE - e REMEE  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 36,681 38,118
BERIBE E Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,889
BREREE Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
EEHE Total assets 58,320,804 63,645,137
aE LIABILITIES
JE 1 FI) 2 Interest payable 442,217 462,518
FERERTE - EAX Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
REMEE other liabilities 26 4,910,949 4,979,510
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
JE 58 18 Tax payable 13(b) 131,850 47,866
RIEBIAE G Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,213 =
RRBE Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
HINEE B & FA K Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BEITEBKES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 = 43,260,323
=Rig k] Total liabilities 51,615,866 57,873,951
e EQUITY
EmE A ARG Capital and reserves attributable to
Nt the equity holders:
i@ Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
IR V4 Retained profits 3,893,341 3,485,678
[\ B2 155 1 Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
N ERE Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
R Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
K B B Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
ERBE Total equity 6,704,938 5,771,186
EEREERE Total equity & liabilities 58,320,804 63,645,137

FEEREN _Z—ZFNMA _+HULERKE®E  Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2010.
Flr7 -

BR=&F NormanT. L. Chan ZEE Pang Sing Tong, Peter
Bl F & Deputy Chairman #7TEZE Executive Director

FANE207EFFE M AGATIEREAN—EE  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Aok 1 W 2 58 W) o
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

AR RBIRREN

Attributable to equity holders of

the Company

g
y MR R .
B RBEN  HMEE Non- &5t
Share  Retained Other  controlling
capital profits * reserves interest Total
Bt FAT FHT FHEL FHET FHET
Notes  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
R-ZZBZENFE—F—H#%&#H Balance as at 1 January 2008 2,000,000 3,401,567 228,663 - 5,630,230
AER R Profit for the year - 604,994 - - 604,994
AHHEESHRTE Net fair value losses of available-for-sale
BiEFE  EHBRHE securities, net of tax 32 = - (142,044) - (142,044)
Reme R EEFE - Net losses arising from cash flow
BMRTE hedges, net of tax 32 - - (72,159 - (72,159
REGINERFEE Exchange differences on translation
HEE & Z 8 of foreign operations
- 5&ENA — joint venture 32 - - (8,557) - (8,557)
REE 2K AE Total comprehensive income for the year - 604,994  (222,760) - 382,234
A R B i 7 A o 2 Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
[RBRIR & F R HI50% earned from retained profits to
ERKHE contingency reserve 32 = (26,330) 26,330 = =
EOEBEESREEM  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 5,282 (5,282) - -
BENZZTLFRE Dividend paid related to 2007 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R-ZBENF Balance as at
TZA=t+—H#&&# 31 December 2008 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
AERRN, (BR) Profit/(loss) for the year ~ 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
AHHEESHAFE Net fair value gains of available-for-sale
W5 - EMKREIE securities, net of tax 32 - - 188,820 - 188,820
RemE e a5 5E Net gains arising from cash flow
EMREIE hedges, net of tax 32 = = 20,981 = 20,981
BREBINEBRELE Exchange differences on translation
B RE 5 = of foreign operations
=N — subsidiary 32 = = 158 () 157
-RE QA - joint venture 32 - - 1,279 - 1,279
AEFZEEWHETE Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
RIETIRER R E Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11358 11,358
B R B A A 2 Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
[RBRAR E FEEHI50% earned from retained profits to
ZEREE contingency reserve 32 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
EOEBEESREEM  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 10,025 (10,025) - -
BENZZZN\EFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R-ZEBNE Balance as at
+-A=+—R#&& 31 December 2009 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
ORI EEAFF A=+ B BREEEMNE * As at 31 December 2009, HK$500 million (2008: HK$250 million) was
£/ # 500,000,000 L (ZZTEENEF earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained earnings.

250,000,000/ 7t) fE A # R R HAARE -

F121Z207 EFTH M AR A MIEHREA —3F  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
% rﬁthi if );Ln?eg éﬂDi:;rm;faElr %O%QE

2009 2008
B 5 FET FHBIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
REEKFBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
45 & i A Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
AT S EEL A : Adjustment for:
FE WA Interest income (1,334,981)  (1,750,116)
FMEX H Interest expense 254,642 1,071,035
& 2 WA Dividend income (42,224) (42,867)
e Depreciation 10,890 8,936
B BITERE S IR Amortisation of discount on debt securities
issued 45,952 44,329
EFURE (B8) /B (Write-back of loan impairment allowances)/
loan impairment charge (36,837) 36,225
HOBR U B B 5K 18 5 Loan portfolio written off
HERBEE net of recoveries 634 716
R B T35 [0 B Unwind of discount on impairment (322) (335)
A EBEFEEREREH  Amortisation of unrealised loss on
5 R R B3R Bt 6 available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities 2,381 338
BAREEEH Amortisation of discount on investment
securities (5,701) (75,436)
HEHHEZSWZFEEE  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities (5,277) (26,026)
TRMTEATFEEZS Change in fair value of financial instruments 35,534 50,993
BEBEREREPRE Change in translation of financial assets
CREEZD under cash flow hedge 25,126 (94,542)
B WA S Interest received 1,361,663 1,776,266
EENEESS Interest paid (278,820) (1,073,063)
R REEERBEEY Cash flows from operating activities before
MEEEBMBRESRE changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,180,956 560,429
R={E A BRI EHER  Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
A () more than three month’s maturity 88,971 (88,386)
JiE U B O A (38 A0) Decrease/(increase) in remittance receivables 597,273 (478,528)
FERIE - Ee Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
SR = assets 630 11,827
BREERD (5 m) Decrease/(increase) in loan portfolio 7,007,921 (16,336,427)
FEERE - BN Increase in accounts payable, accrued
N H fth & B TR N expenses and other liabilities 90,484 32,187
TRz B B F RGN Increase in insurance liabilities, net 635,919 265,295
HNHE TR = 28 Exchange differences (2,848) 29,515
KRS (FTA) Re Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,599,306 (16,004,088)
B EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (51,066) (15,584)
LEEKHME, (FTA)E 4  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
HER activities 9,548,240 (16,019,672
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BT BLe iR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_TThE+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5% FERT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
RETHMEBEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (17,845) (7,389)
BEAHLEES Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (3,134,672) (17,311,387)
BERERIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (2,923,038)  (3,036,106)
HEXERAHRDEERES Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FTi5 38 available-for-sale securities 1,813,456 18,565,927
EOHEERHBAATSHIE  Proceeds from redemption of
held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 2,731,226 3,518,682
SERNERE Investment in joint venture - (122,097)
FEU A & A |l ZIE R A Decrease in amount due from a joint venture 1,543 =
BERAIHEEFELFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 39,554 41,513
& ERE (FTA) /834  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
FEE activities (1,489,776) 1,649,143
BMEAMBEERA GRi) BFEE Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
financing 8,058,464 (14,370,529)
METBMEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
HNEE B & FAFKFT1S 5K IE Proceeds from advance from Exchange
Fund 57,000,000 8,000,000
EEINEESIAR Repayment from advance from Exchange
Fund (65,000,000) -
BITEBBESFMEHIE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 22,060,740 24,377,642
BROETERES Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (19,645,595) ' (16,362,840)
EBITIRBERFER Repayment of mortgage-backed securities
issued 30 (1,171,456) (1,055,906)
RIS R EE Capital injection by non-controlling interest 11,358 -
EfARE Dividend paid 16 (250,000) (250,000)
BB ES (PTA) /PT84  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
ikl activities (6,994,953) 14,708,896
HEREERLEEEMFLE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,063,511 338,367
FYREeRERRELER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 2,764,608 2,426,241
FRESRERBEELIER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 3,828,119 2,764,608

FANE207 EFH M AR BB RERAN —3F

The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
e financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. AmEdLuE

BERIBEFBERAR (AR REMBA
A (R (AR B ) iR MR ITIZR B E
AEIMAE ((EEFHMAE]) BMRNEE
MBHEER ([BAMBREER] (BEFRE
EANERN BB BREER ([BEPBRSE
A - BAGEN(EBSTER) k2
B) BRARNEERA - URBB ARG
MR ERE -

A EMBRERVIRELRAEPIRE - X2
HRAHHERSRE - WATEIIRNERE
EReREE(BETEERIA) NEMED

LR

BRAITRURE SN - B FRA M ERRAE
RHNEIREABR LA ERE AT 2RO
BFEMERANERM— -

RENT BBV BRELENMEHRRE AR
RETEXRGE  MEEEERASES
SARERESRABITIEL HE - BERS HE K
EHREFENER - RRRNEFHRE P BRE
BEENBIBC M T4NE -

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including

derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FEEFHHEUR 2.

2.1 PRAYA U B i ) 2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs
(a) R BRJUE—H — IR

Significant accounting policies

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or after

O ER ~ BT Bk R 1 January 2009
BRARUTAE,
RERBZHREE
0| B2E Applicable for HEAEEHEEA
Standard/ AES financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
BRI RELIFE25% MRIEERT — e 55 8 IR KT A —ZEZNF—HR—H &
HKFRS 2 Share-based payments — 1 January 2009 No
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
BRMBRELIETHR BERBERIAZHKE —ZTENF-A—H I
HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial 1 January 2009 Yes
Instruments
BARV B RELEIFET mEN R —ZTNF-A—H z
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009 Yes
BAEGERIE1% FBIHRR 225 —ZTNF-A—H z
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009 Yes
AE R ERF235% EE AR —ZTNF-A—H e
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009 No
AE gt ERF325% hEeMIARBGRESEZER —ZTNF-A—H e
LEBGHENFE1R
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and 1 January 2009 No
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
&k (ERABRE BP R E —ZEN\F+H-H B
REZE®)
- REF135%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008 No
&k (ERABRSE FEHERERZ —EENF—-A—-H B
RBRZE®)
— REE15%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of 1 January 2009 No
Real Estate
&k (ERABRE BN EBRE FR 2 H —EEN\F+A—-H B
RBRZE®)
— RREE16%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in 1 October 2008 No

a Foreign Operation
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ERMBREENRTR 2BITRER
BERMIACHKE
ZIERTIERMBR A FEFEZHE
ME - AR EERBERBESR
B2 IREER - ZERTERTE
ZRFEFESA-—E=ZRHIBE
BRI REALBR AL D BERE
TRIEERZEBMTAELE TR
EREEWE o I RETERE
R BERBESRER ZRAR
E o EERERDHEITERIED
LeMABETRDESRRY
o RNZIEFT S HERINEE - B
HAKENP BN L EE R RIL
BEMNTE -

BEEMBREENESRLEESE
ZEABMR BB G ERF 145D
BERFHREEIBNRERESD
BHMRE - BEMBEREERFETH
HRERAMB2 M AEREEN[E
BINEI 2N BER - BENBE
AR ETBKERRECTHMEENR
AARE D - AEEEFHEFEY
BRERNFSHRNTE  WHEEE
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50 RIBMESBEBOEE KA
EWE -

EBETTENF1RTERR 2275
CIETTIRAR-_EE+FE+ - A8
5o ERIZN PR EIRANET
WARRZIER (BN 3EFTA &=
25))  REIMEEEZZT]
BEFIBERERZEHSFAZY - T
EIFBEEEBAREREREK
FEY  ERRAEEN— M EE
& (EEMER) @ HRE (W
ZEREERER) 25 c AEEDE
BE2IMHRE  WaRkkE2E
iz o RIBLISETER  BEBRE
REFwBAIMBEMKRRE] MK
© I E R MR XA [Cash Flow
Statement ] Z ¥ 7 % & [ Statement
of Cash Flows] °

ABR A & The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited ZZT T NF F 7R Annual Report 2009

Amendment to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The amendment increases the disclosure requirements about
fair value measurement and reinforces existing principles for
disclosure about liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and
requires some specific quantitative disclosures for financial
instruments in the lowest level in the hierarchy. In addition, the
amendment clarifies and enhances the existing requirements for
the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily requiring a separate
liquidity risk analysis for derivative and non-derivative financial
liabilities. The adoption of the amendment results in additional
disclosures but does not have an impact on the financial position
or the comprehensive income of the Group.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The standard replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting with its
requirement to determine primary and secondary reporting
segments. HKFRS 8 requires a ‘management approach’ under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating segments
are components of an entity regularly reviewed by an entity’s
chief operating decision-maker. The Group has assessed the
impact of HKFRS 8 and concluded that the key impact is on the
identification of segments, measurement of segment information
in line with the management information for decisions making
and more qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to
segments.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised version was issued in December 2007. It prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-
owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity. All non-owner changes
in equity will be required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two
statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present two
statements: an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. Under the revised standard, the Balance
Sheet is renamed as the “Statement of Financial Position” and
the Cash Flow Statement is renamed as the “Statement of Cash
Flows”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HBEERTEENZN  UFAK
ERTAER - RIBBE S ERFE1R
ZAERT - mm AR D (BIEHE
b2 WA B ) FE R B 9] AR ey
FREEETHR - AR BRE
HEFEZY) WEHREANL
BAEAZE -

Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also
conforms with the revised standard. According to the amendment
of HKAS 1, each component of equity, including each item of
other comprehensive income, should be reconciled between
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation
aspects, there is no impact on retained earnings.

(b) T AL g A 2 280 iy ¥ 00 % G R
UNTREBEMEAEEAR_ZT

(b) Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued

NFtA—Bz&HR 22T H and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
) 98 Il B B9 ZE Bl ;e 2 8 on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods:
BERARUTAHRZ
HBARZHBREE
%2R BE Applicable for ER 7 S @ AR RE
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
ERVHEREERNEIT RWBLF - HREHIAFIK —EENFALAA S
REBGFERNE27H  BERBZREKK
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1 July 2009 No
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
BERBVBEREHERNEIR R —ETNFEA—H S
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2009 No
BAE G ERE275R tre KB M mE —ETNF+EA—H 2
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009 Yes
Statements
BB ER E395% CRTH WREiE - AERYEPIER —ZTTAFLA—H 2
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009 Yes
Measurements - Eligible Hedged Iltems
E575 (BRGHRE MEEADRFRSERE —EENFELA—HA S
“RELZE®
— REE17TH
HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009 No
55 (BRVBRE EEREEPCEE —EENFALHAA S
RELZEE)
— 2EZ18%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009 No
EEMBREEE emIAE D DERFE —ET—=%—HA—H =
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification 1 January 2013 Yes
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BB EARE2TRGARBILH
BE|R

ISR RERIBE - AESIETE
MEERXZETBEEHEHIE
g RIS BRI MR R 2 A Y
MERSNTENAERERTE
5l o ZZERI TR IR AR R IR FI MR 2
SFRESTN - HAZRAZHB T
BERATFESHFTE  MBERN
BaRTER - AREEAKE
E-ZE-A-HREEAEESR
HERIZE275R (B ET) Ba IR B2 FE
ERRZENZS -
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HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised standard requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with non-controlling interests from
1 January 2010.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items

The amendment Eligible Hedged Items was issued in November
2008. It provides guidance in two situations: On the designation
of one-sided risk in a hedged item HKAS 39 concludes that a
purchased option designated in its entirely as the hedging
instrument of a one-sided risk will not be perfectly effective. The
designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion is not permitted
unless in particular situations. This will not give rise to any
changes to the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRS

‘Improvements to HKFRS’ contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
‘Improvement to HKFRS’ comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS standards.
Most of the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010
respectively, with earlier application permitted. No material
changes to accounting policies are expected as a result of these
amendments.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and
Measurement

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts
of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only ‘basic loan
features’). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather that profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and
loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the
impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

(c) Early adoption of standards

The Group did not early-adopt any new or amended standards
in 2009.
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of these interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities.
They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidation statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the net profit for the year between non-
controlling interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to non-controlling interest result in gains and
losses to the Group that are recorded in the income statement.
Purchases from the non-controlling interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary.

(c) Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for
impairment allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.



BB IEBESBR A A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

2.3

2.4

LY ON S

BIEE AN ATER LA ABEESN -
FEMESMT AL FIBKARY HS
R EIEF SRR MR N R -

ERNB AR BAESREENTH
BEZEEKAARED B BHREZH
BRASEZHITTE - BERMXERE
BT Az FHZERRE ER)
MR EET AR RIRE S H SR A EREYTIR
ErREERNTHABREREFENF
L FEERNEXE - FEEREES
BTANRA S OERKAGBRSR
B BTG RARREEREE - FHEH
BERETNENE XN W EBR
ERNERAI D& —#O— L&A
AR Z KA R BB HoAtb )it (BT -

E-HoREER - ARATREER
HEREREMBREEER - %
HREEBRFRUTERKESREN
F R ERFEWA -

FEH BB

(a) 2 B2 WA
B A R 48 % A 4R (4 AR 55 B DA P
FHEERR c BREBANETTS
B MM ML FEBERY
EEERF SRAEEF R HE
R o

(b) BB WA
P B A TR BRAS JE I P B 488 1) s i
=

2.3

2.4

— T A, FF R Annual Report 2009

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income

(a) Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate are
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate in

determining interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.
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2.5

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit
or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

() the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial liabilities
is provided internally to the key management personnel.

(i

=

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one
or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash
flows, are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and for which the Group has no intention of trading.



(c) FHEAWBE
REIMRERSBRIENAIHEER
RBIEFHHETESREE -
AAXRGEEEERARAEERKEE
REDH - EAEBEHEIFERH
HeREIHEE  IBREEER
AREFEI B BEAHREE
BE -

it i 1 B ¥

AHHERERBIEETERIER
S B AR E A RE IR FEOTE
ERIRE - AIHHEERERERE
FERRAMNKRE  TRERBED
FRYHMZE - ERIMEEEHM L
& AR EREVISRAFE(R
RERNMBEERFHAR) R - Bk
BRFERA -

~

EREENEENIWAER © T
BYFARFEE(FABENS
BEENRERAFEMERZSK
RHER o WA TFEELET ABEM
EREEVNTRATFERR MR
AR W RIES H © %
EeRMEENSRSRENENT
RRAEECEEMEENOREL
FE R KBRS - BRI SE

ERMEEZWER -

AftHESREERARFERZLE
FARENERMEERERNARTE
IR o B AR K AR IR K E B
R IR R SR A B R A BOR DA 85 K
KB o AR FEZ(CF ARER
TREEIERINATEEDELN
Was kB - RELERT AZIE
s R - AR ESREERT
BEEPHELNARERRELEBRR
BETHEER EEARTRE
EWEHIORER - BRI E R0
BaRZ2TRAERBE A
&= o AT ERERMEATER
METIRKERPHER - AHEE
BETAZEENEBRARRGE
IR SRR R s R TR -

BB 1% 18 %5 B R A 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited ZZT T NF F 7R Annual Report 2009

(c) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

(d) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They
are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held at fair

value.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
settlement date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” category are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity should
be recognised in income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the entity’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based
on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial
asset, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

2.6 A WA 2.6 Impairment of financial assets
(a) DASR S A 5 R 2 ¥ 7

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

® abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation;

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an

observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future cash
flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on
the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period which are indicative
of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.
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(b) Assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in income statement, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans
Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due
but are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
the financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially
at fair value.

The notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP”) and the notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and under
the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP”) and the notes issued
under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN”) are recorded as
debt securities issued on the statement of financial position. The
Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by the SPEs through
the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme are recorded
as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of financial
position on consolidation of the SPEs. These notes (including MBS)
are initially designated as financial liabilities either (i) at fair value
through profit or loss or (ii) other financial liabilities.
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2.8

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge
and at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded in the
income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are measured at
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount
and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in
the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options
pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data
from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group
recognises profits on day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and
the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes

in fair value recognised in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedge); or, (2) hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable
to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used, is amortised to income
statement over the period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument

are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale
and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms.
Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
segment and apportionment of management overheads.
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[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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2.13

Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed
of, such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.
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2.14 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and

2.15

non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for
use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investment in the subsidiary, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the
period in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses
available for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to
equity and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the deferred gain or loss.
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(a) Employee leave entitlements
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Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave
are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by
the Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions
being forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to full vesting of the employer contributions.

The pension schemes covering all the Group’s PRC employees
are defined Contribution scheme at various funding rates, and
are in accordance with local practices and regulations.
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2.17

2.18

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of each
reporting period date are discounted to present value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.

Leases

(a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as
lessee. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.

143




B3 o3 W 5 e ik
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.19

2.20

144

(b) BAEEALEY
BEMAIE AR ERAEEASED
BRI RERKEHR 2 EEMRL -
REBEZZEULAASHDEIIRE
a4 - MERNHNAERREIZA
EMEATEAZEELREIR
1K B BAEEUGRIE o EUGRIEARRE
EEEHQMIEEETEE’J§§EE§W7%*%
HWEE WA - LKA REERE
R B [E E [0l 7 R 40 ) F IR B AR o
BEE@MEMANSENTES QR
BRLER G XV o REREBILZ
M ZE2. 6FTE & TR P BR ©

REeEREMB4MEHA
HREETERMNS  BeRkERRLE
BBEREAZBREFT=EARNTHH
ek BIER S - SRIT R A M RIEE
H&F -

548 O B 5 &9
REBNRIBREEBRIBFESE
BN - RRFEEGHREE - A%E
BARKRW A SEFRRIE L B - B
REFHFENRRES - RREEBRR
FIDBER M F LA EREET

EREBEEASHFRBERTRBESH
BEAREBHORE - MBITNRHNE
REBEANBRRAFAXNBRRER

& AEEERERRKRERHREE
B o (R BIFRRNMR R £ AR 2 B

L BIFER U -

*Fﬁﬂﬂ%%ﬁxii&ﬁﬂﬁiéﬁ%ﬁ%j‘%@
B MARH RIS TR R EFEA D

2.19

2.20

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. The Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor.
Finance leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on
the annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach,
the Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future
income and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result includes any
adjustments arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the
Authorized Institutions during an accounting period. The gross
premiums after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums
and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums are
recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during the time
the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to
the end of each reporting period.
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Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For
risk-sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a
year is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period
of time and maintained in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and as considered by directors to be appropriate.
Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end of the
reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve
can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group
with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses
on one or more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits
to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims
recoverable from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as

an expense when due.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

Dividend
Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period
is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
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3.1

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The principal activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios of
mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of assets
through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to securitise mortgage
portfolios through special purpose entities by way of issuing
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”); and (iv) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by
residential properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s
activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group’s financial performance.

A new Risk Oversight Division was established in 2009 to further
strengthen the management of risk within the Group. The Risk
Oversight Division is responsible to the overall risk governance
structure of the Group’s risk management policies and major limits
for approval by the Board of Directors. The Corporate Risk
Management Committee is set up at corporate level to provide
oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including financial
and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including
the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Audit
Committee, Transaction Approval Committee and Operational Risk
Committee which report to Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability
Committee (“ALCO”) oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
which includes currency risk and interest rate risk.
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Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the counterparties are
mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies

with very high credit ratings.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end
of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for
managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select
Approved Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria
and insurance eligibility criteria, (i) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers,
counterparties and a diversified geographic distribution of underlying
collateral.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and
take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers
in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is
performed regularly and impairment allowance is charged to income
statement in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review. The principal collateral types for loan
portfolio are mortgages over properties, reserve funds and deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio
is determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities
and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
assets.
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For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in accordance
with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group.
These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the
Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their
fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume
of instruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is managed as
part of the overall credit limits with counterparties, together with

potential exposures from market movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of

collateral held or other credit enhancements

Rt B R A MR A M EE L
A0 5E 18 56 B0 £k = 15 B R 5 A 4

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of

collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as

o follows:
AEH PN/NE]
The Group The Company
R-ZZERE RZZETNEF R-ZZEAE RZZENE
t+=A=t-B +=A=+—-H +=A=+t-B +=A=+—-H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FEx FHT FERT FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets:
RehEHEe Cash and short-term funds 4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735
B U F B K FE 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 710,530 1,334,485 698,809 1,322,591
PTESBTA Derivative financial
instruments 1,317,375 2,237,526 1,273,102 2,159,479
BRAEEFE Loan portfolio, net 43,788,716 | 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285
BHEE Investment securities:
- AR EES — available-for-sale debt
securities 2,587,344 1,209,825 2,587,344 1,209,825
-EHHEHHES - held-to-maturity debt
securities 5,817,998 5,614,666 5,817,998 5,614,666
FENFRIE « & K% Prepayments, deposits and
Hth & = other assets 32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 348,442 266,101 348,442
BEAERINAK © Off-balance sheet exposures:
B TS HE(R Financial guarantees
(1238EH1bst#El  (contractual amount under
HE L E) the MBS programmes) - - 1,277,647 1,717,540
[ g 3 AR Risk-in-force 14,920,287 9,830,573 14,919,441 9,830,573
73,508,744 74,459,442 71,619,038 71,974,254
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) HEEE (b) Credit quality
EREE AT The loan portfolio is analysed as follows:
r&EE . UNG|
The Group The Company
R=ZBERF RZZEN\F R=ZBERF RZZZN\F
+=A=+-RA +=ZA=+—H +=A=+-RA +=ZA=+—H~
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHT FTHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SR 480 B 7T RO E Neither past due nor
impaired 42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512
80 BB SRR (B Past due but not impaired 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
ERE Impaired 5,377 22,534 5,377 22 372
B esE Gross loan portfolio 43,802,727 50,810,648 40,831,138 46,728,058
EFURERE Allowance for loan

impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)
43,788,716 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285

REBRPRRBRITFRBEOER
HANEEERAI2EARERMN

The credit quality of loan portfolio that were neither past due nor
impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed

KN EBET AR R TR AL © by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.
& PN
The Group The Company
R=ZBENF R-ZTTNEF R=BEAF RZZTNF
t=A=t-R +=ZA=+—-A t=A=t-H +=A=t-H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
THET FET FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
® A - Grades:
1238 1103 42,794,073 49,725,637 39,916,630 45,705,432
4% 4 - 2,409 - 2,409
58% 5 60,745 33,360 55,443 32,671
42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512

123 BREEERRNELAR
HRENER - AFETRKFER
EEZP ISR E e RS (R RAVIE
Moo

AP BIFF LA - WIFET
E7KF 0= B 2 BE DN 3% 1 3 Mo 3K 4
mEE R o

SAREIER ST AT B HIRC 8 M 5 A A
miERERNER

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no

previous past due history; and with different levels of credit

enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with

different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral

held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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(c¢) Loan portfolio past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross loan portfolio that were past

RMERBEEEIN - due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:
rEH PN/NE]
The Group The Company
R=ZBEAF REZZET)N\F R=ZBEAF RZZTN\F
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=1+—H +=A=+—-8A +=A=+—8©
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERx FHET FERx FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
i HARE R Past due:
=@EAEAT Three months or less 933,096 1,021,165 844,512 959,955
NE AT - Six months or less but
BER =8 A over three months 4,316 3,746 4,056 3,611
HBiEsNEA Over six months 5,120 1,797 5,120 1,608
FEEE Total 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
ARG R EM{=E  Fair value of collateral and
2 BE IN58 18 1 other credit enhancement
A TE 2,753,000 = 2,173,979 2,515,417 = 2,015,777

(d) O B WAL X AL A (d) Loan portfolio individually impaired
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REBERARBRFTAFHEERD
REBRHMEEEEENRSR
EXERFEERA5,377,0008 70
(ZZZN\F - AEE 22,534,000
BT - AR 22,372,000/ 7T) ©

NEBRARD R HABEKITRR R
EERHMARERENRFER
9,177,000/ 7T (Z TN\ F : m%
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Ei@m%ﬁhmvﬁ*AWﬁ#
BAEMELAENER - NEE
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TEERES - RFARE - £AIE
BHNEFERFRIEESRE - I
HEHEMALUESEREE - AR
FRIERTIRIBERAGA AT Re R
XARIBBROEESIREED « ZF
BURESRERITES - RAE 88
FRMENEEANERR TN
F+ = A =+—H/A3,304,000/8 T
(ZZEZNF £ 9,811,000 7T) ° Bk
B ERBETIEREE R T E TR
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The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement is HK$5,377,000 (2008: The Group:
HK$22,534,000 and the Company: HK$22,372,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company is HK$9,177,000 (2008: The
Group: HK$26,602,000 and the Company: HK$26,338,000)

(e) Loan portfolio renegotiated

Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due
to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where
the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise
consider. Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer
account is reset to a normal status and managed together with
other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which indicate that payment will
most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired totalled HK$3,304,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$9,811,000). A renegotiated loan will continue to be disclosed
as such unless the loan has been performing in accordance with
the rescheduled terms for a period of six months.
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

BREE
Carrying Amount
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEWE Residential property 3,317 3,149

WEIMESEBERAITIER TER
HE - FAFFEANRD REEE
A o WEIMER AN R AR IE
REMEERT °

(g) Be¥EH %

REBEERILENRERS - AR
AEARENSEREEEFRE
BEr BEAREEZEEHKR
RBNE D HIRE L PIETRRE R
% o

BENDEERBEOTRT E
(Standard and Poor’s * Moody’s .
Fitch) - %172 2 M EAARIZ T 7E A2 5
HEBBHIED - WFEHART R
B - AR ABHFEITARNRR

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

(g) Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the HKMC can only invest in debt securities with a
certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on
external credit agency'’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody'’s
and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings
for the issuers are reported.

BEZIHES

T B E S Held-to-
AEBEAAT Available-for- maturity FEEC]
R=BBAF+=A=+—8 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA-ZAA+/Aa3Z Aai AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aai 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A-ZA+/ASZA1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 844,821 844,821
Mg Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342

FAEZEIHES

A EFE A Held-to-
AEERARA Available-for- maturity 4Bz
RZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company T T FHET
As at 31 December 2008 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 506,613 506,613
AA-ZEAA+/Aa3ZE Aatl AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aail 1,209,825 4,558,827 5,768,652
A-ZA+/A3E AT A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 549,226 549,226
REE Total 1,209,825 5,614,666 6,824,491
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3.3.

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes
in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise from the interest
rate management of the entity’s financial instruments of different
repricing characteristics. The Group hedges a major proportion of
its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance using
fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps by swapping into
floating-rate funding to better match the floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. A regular meeting is
held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets and the
asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in accordance
with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle office monitors
the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to assess the
potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points)
parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31
December 2009 would decrease the future net interest income
for the next 12 months by HK$18.7 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
increase) and increase by HK$13 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
decrease) for a similar upward parallel shift.
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As at 31 December 2009, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel
shift downwards, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$5.4 million (2008: HK$5.9 million higher) lower and the reserve
would have been HK$2.9 million lower (2008: HK$8.9 million) as
at 31 December 2009. If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis
points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel shift upwards, profit before
tax for the year would have been HK$5 million (2008: HK$15.2
million lower) higher and the reserve would have been HK$2 million
higher (2008: HK$8.8 million).

As at 31 December 2009, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) higher. Conversely, if the
HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) lower.

As at 31 December 2009 & 2008, with all other variable held
constant, the weakening or strengthening of HK dollar by 100
price interest points against other foreign currencies would have
no significant impact on the profit before tax for the year.

The 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) and 100 price interest
points increase or decrease represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rate and exchange
rates over the period until the next reporting period end.
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REEEIRTINE T I5 8 2R B &
HEI Bk RIR &7 2 K58 i
ERk - FBERREETARE
BEMMING  c AEABEEREZE
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-
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(a) Currency risk
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for
investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

TREFIREEOINEE ZRR -
RAFEAAEEZREEIEDN

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the

BEMEAE  WIREEEESME o Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by currency.
HAishus
BT %7t Other foreign MR
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
FEE FHET FET FHET FHET
The Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=-ZZAEF As at 31 December 2009
+=B=+—-H
BE Assets
RekEHEe Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
JFEUFI B K fE 3R Interest and remittance receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
TESmTE Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
EREEEE Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
BHILE Investment securities:
- AHEHE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-BHEEEH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
BREARIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 115,190 115,190
TEE Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
BERE - Ee Prepayments, deposits and
R H A EE other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
BRIEREE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BEE Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
=L Liabilities
FEF) 8 Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
JERBRFN » A Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
TELMTE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
e TR Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
BLEREEE Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
=k Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BBTESES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
BEITRIBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
BEE Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
RS Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547 (1,673,545) 6,741,091
BEABRING Off-balance sheet net notional
HEFE position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure
to currency movements and their fair values

FRERRRINFRERRAEINETE
SRTA(EZAUREAEENER
REHELR) MB RS EEE N TED
R e
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H At oh s
BT %5t Other foreign MmE
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
AR H Fi#T F#T Fi#T T
The Company HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZEZNE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
BeNEHES Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
JE 45 FI| 8. K [ 3R Interest and remittance receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
BEREAFE Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
BHEE Investment securities:
-AEHE - available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-RBEZRIH - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
M B AR E Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
EERRIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 120,554 120,554
BEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
BNRE - ke Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BEE Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
=L Liabilities
T FILE Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
FERTBRFR BB Accounts payable, accrued
REMERE expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
eI B IE Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
REREE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BEATEBES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
#wERE Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
REEFR Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572 (1,675,320) 6,704,938
BEBERING Off-balance sheet net notional
EERE position * 4,388,318  (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FERERBERINFRERERINETE
SRMITA(EZZRURERRARER
R ELR) B FE S REE N TED
EH e

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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H A
BIT ES Other foreign FEEE]
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
REE FET FET FHET FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTNEF As at 31 December 2008
+=A=+—8
BE Assets
HekEHES Cash and short-term funds 1,715,931 1,376,710 617 3,093,258
FEUFI B K fE 5X Interest and remittance receivables 1,100,888 228,400 5,197 1,334,485
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,147,270 90,256 - 2,237,526
BERHEEFE Loan portfolio, net 36,086,528 14,673,584 - 50,760,112
BHE/E Investment securities:
- AT E - available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
-FHBEEEH - held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
BERBIRE Investment in a joint venture 1,543 = 111,989 113,532
TBE Fixed assets 14,302 - - 14,302
BAHE & Prepayments, deposits and
KRH & E other assets 30,555 = = 30,555
EENIREE Deferred tax assets 28,904 = = 28,904
BRREE Reinsurance assets 348,442 - - 348,442
REE Total assets 44,818,983 20,604,715 204,636 65,628,334
BE Liabilities
FERTAILR Interest payable 280,832 183,973 5,160 469,965
JERBRFN » Y Accounts payable, accrued
kEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,183,693 = = 4,183,693
TTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
FE R IR Tax payable 47,866 - - 47,866
REBREE Insurance liabilities 908,740 = = 908,740
HIMEE 2R Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEITERHS Debt securities issued 37,697,553 3,816,602 1,300,833 42,814,988
BRTIREES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 3,225,624 - - 3,225,624
me s Total liabilities 54,472,682 4,087,195 1,305,993 59,865,870
HEFE Net position (9,653,699) 16,517,520  (1,101,357) 5,762,464
BEEBERING Off-balance sheet net notional
AEFR position (97,119)  (1,006,850) 1,196,717 92,748

FEEABRRIINFRERARINEITE
SRTA(EZAUNREAEENER
REEER) MEESRELNFEN
EH o

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure

to currency movements and their fair values.
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H o
BIT EP Other foreign 4z
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
ARAT FHT FHT FHET FHET
The Company HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZETNEF As at 31 December 2008
+-B=+—H
BE Assets
Hehmiige Cash and short-term funds 1,677,408 1,376,710 617 3,054,735
JE U5 FI| 8. K [ 3R Interest and remittance receivables 1,088,994 228,400 5,197 1,322,591
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 2,069,223 90,256 - 2,159,479
EREE TR Loan portfolio, net 32,004,701 14,673,584 - 46,678,285
BHEE Investment securities:
— AJHE — available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
— BFEZRIH - held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
AP NETE o= Investment in a subsidiary 2,210,981 - - 2,210,981
AENRIRE Investment in a joint venture 1,543 - 120,554 122,097
BEEE Fixed assets 14,302 - - 14,302
BNRE - ke Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets 38,118 - - 38,118
EETIEEE Deferred tax assets 28,889 - - 28,889
BRIREE Reinsurance assets 348,442 = = 348,442
BEE Total assets 42,827,221 20,604,715 213,201 63,645,137
8 Liabilities
JE A 71L& Interest payable 273,385 183,973 5,160 462,518
FERTBRFR « FETBISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
RE A B E expenses and other liabilities 4,979,510 - - 4,979,510
PTESR I A Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
eI B IE Tax payable 47,866 - = 47,866
REREE Insurance liabilities 908,740 - - 908,740
SNEEE & B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEAEBES Debt securities issued 38,142,888 3,816,602 1,300,833 43,260,323
FES=Lr Total liabilities 52,480,763 4,087,195 1,305,993 57,873,951
REEFR Net position (9,653,542) 16,517,520 (1,092,792) 5,771,186
BEBEBRING Off-balance sheet net notional
BERR position *# 97,119 (1,006,850) 1,196,717 92,748

FERERBERINFRERERINETTE
SRMITA(EZRURERRFRES
B ELR) M) B FE BB DT EN
EH e

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes
on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the
level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements,
are included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—fBARE ZEARE —FN0E
—BAR Z=@A E-fF ZRF R R
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year EFHULE  Non-interest am
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years bearing Total
AEE FET TET FET FET THET FET FET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=BENE As at 31 December 2009
t=A=t-A
& Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
FEUFI S RERR Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
fTEEMIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,317,375 1,317,375
BqiasE Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
BHRE - Investment securities:
- INE - avallable-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025,720 3,613,064
-HEZHH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 41,7141 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
AERFRE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 115,190 115,190
EEéE Fied assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
BHE %E Prepayments, deposits and
REMBE other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BREAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
EfIFIS Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
ERERN - EARAX Accounts payable, acorued
REMAR expenses and other liabilities 4,133,740 - - - - 140,437 4274477
{TEEMIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
ERBE Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
EERBEE Deferred tax liabilties - - - - - 15,209 15,209
REBAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BETERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
BEIEEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,051,120 - 229,116 740,158 - - 2,020,394
BEE Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 58,009,533
HNSHBEROAE Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537  (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833
F®fTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(BERENZZLH) (notional amounts of
net position) (13,406,010)  (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536
 REIALTESB T ASE T BYEE BT * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
" debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.

BEREFRCBEITRBESNZE -
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—@ANE  Z@AKRE —FLE
—@AK E=fEA E-% BRE T
Up to  Over1month Over3 months Over 1 year BENE Non-interest am
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
NG| FHT FET FHT FHT FET FHT FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
R=BENE As at 31 December 2009
t=R=t-H
BE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
FEYH 8 REHK Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,273,102 1,273,102
EREsFE Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,078,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
BHRE Investment securities:
- e - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,002 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,004
-HEEHH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 4,74 3,007,888 476,335 - 5817998
MEBARRE Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
RERTRE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 120,554 120,554
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
BB fe Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEE Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,350 3,155,322 491,238 3501681 58,320,804
& Liabilities
R & Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
B ENRY Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabiliies 4,724,848 - - - - 186,101 4,910,949
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
JERHE Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
BRHBEE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,213 15,213
RBRAE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BREAERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,203,644 6664434 19,688,772 5805072 - 44,495,073
Eaf Total liabilties 10,767,999 6,203,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5805072 2,395,945 51,615,866
HERBERO AR Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,750,061 2,941,500  (5,344,075)  (16,533,450)  (5,313,834)
FIRfTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(BATENEZLH) (notional amounts of
net position) (12,481,010) (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

CARRATTAESRMIASESHD BT
BEESFNTE -

* before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
debt securities issued.
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—EAME  SEAME —E5E
AR =={88 B =HE T8
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year RERE Non-interest ek
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
% FHTL FHTL T T FHTL T FHTL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
RZEENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t-R
AE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 2,681,817 164,800 206,150 - - 40,491 3,093,258
FEUFI S RERR Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,334,485 1,334,485
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,237,526 2,237,526
ERAREE Loan portfolio, net 34,856,337 15,878,446 14,041 11,288 - - 50,760,112
BHRE - Investment securities:
- A E - available-for-sale - 1,209,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
-HEZHH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,550 1,401,822 2,566,293 393,570 - 5,614,666
AEDNARE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 113,532 113,532
ErdE Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
BHE %E Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 30,555 30,555
EEHEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,904 28,904
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BaE Total assets 38413565 17640621 1622013 2567581 393570 4990964 65608334
af Liabilties
e 7 & Interest payable - - - - - 469,965 469,965
TR ERRAX Accounts payable, acorued
REMAE expenses and other liabilities 4,088,880 - - - - 94,813 4,183,693
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
[ERHE Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
RRAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 908,740 908,740
NEESBH Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BENERES Debt securities issued 10,079,026 5,244,478 5,791,690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 42,814,988
BEEEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,257,577 - 990,027 978,020 - - 3,225,624
BafE Total liabities 23425483 5204478 6781717 15947815 6729999 1736378 59,865,870
MEFRERD AR Total interest sensitivity gap* 14988102 12,396,143  (5,159,704) (13,380,234)  (6,336,429)
Hl=HTET A Interest rate derivatives
(BEFENEZER) (notional amounts of
net position) (16,562,510) (8723435 6,172,000 13974060 5,139,885
* REFATESBMIAEEERHEET * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
BEREFROBITIRBESNZE - debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issue.
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—fEALE =@ALNE — 5 E
—EAA Z=M@A E—fF ZR¥ B
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AFEE Non-interest B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
YN THT THT THT THT THT THT THT
The Company HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
RZZZNE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t+-A
B Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 2,662,755 164,800 187,400 - - 39,780 3,054,735
YIS RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,322,591 1,322,591
fTESBTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,159,479 2,159,479
EHBRER Loan portfolio, net 30776325 15,878,446 13,191 10,323 - - 46,678,285
FHRE - Investment securities:
- WftHE - avallable-for-sale - 1,209,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
- HBZHH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,560 1,401,822 2,556,293 393,670 - 5,614,666
HBARAEE Investment in a subsidiary 2,208,160 - 854 967 - 1,000 2,210,981
BENARE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 122,097 122,097
BrgE Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
BRHE  #e Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 38,118 38,118
BEHEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,889 28,889
BREBAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BEE Total assets 36,622,671 17,640,621 1,603,267 2,567,683 393,670 4917,425 63,645,137
af Liabilties
JERTFIS Interest payable - - - - - 462,518 462,518
R - BRRX Accounts payable, accrued
REMAR expenses and other liabilties 4,831,846 - - - - 147,664 4,979,510
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
ERHE Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
RBAR Insurance liabilties - - - - - 908,740 908,740
MNEES B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BEMEBES Debt securities issued 10,524,361 5,244,478 5,791,690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 43,260,323
BefE Total liabilities 23,356,207 5,244,478 5,791,690 14,969,795 6,729,999 1,781,782 57,873,951
HMEHBERO LT Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,166,464 12,396,143  (4,188423)  (12,402,212)  (6,336,429)
MEFETE Interest rate derivatives
BEFENEREH) (notional amounts of
net position) (14,672510) (8723435  5432,000 12,824,060 5,139,885

TASERSYDET

before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the

L 1 ¢ 4 L R
nBETRBIEAEEREEELN
BRI AR ARBENERIZHE
EHREMR - AREFRENESRA
M - SR T AT AR AR
HEErEHESRARRE - AEERT
FE SRR FEXGERREFOE
MBEES BEREEEZESTH
HRBESHKRETESE -

el

debt securities issued.
3.4. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay
its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans.
Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflow and outflow
of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and
outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has
established diversified funding sources to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities.
Source of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(a) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the projected contractual undiscounted
cash flows including future interest payments on the basis of
their earliest possible contractual maturity. The Group’s
derivatives include interest rate swaps that will be settled on net
basis; and cross currency swaps, currency forward contracts

HEEH - that will be settled on gross basis.
—EARE =EARE —FNE
—fBAR E=f8A E-F ZnF
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BEULE B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
rEE THET FET FET TET FET FET
The Group HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBERE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-H
FTERE RS Non-derivative cash outflows
af Liabilities
BETELES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715) (7,500,004) (48,335,622
BREITRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227)  (401,388) (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)
(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389)  (7,500,004) (50,428,226)
TERERA/ (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELER Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTESRIA
- REEE - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253)  (140,333)
-BEEE - on gross basis
ikt Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371) (23,236,701)
TALRE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
—BANE =EARE —FLE
—fEAR Z=M@A - ZHE
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BENUL %)
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
N TR FHT FET FHT FHT FET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBEZRE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-A
FTER ST Non-derivative cash outflows
af Liabilities
BEMEBES Debt securities issued (1,118,623) (3,715,322) (7,917,958) (28,083,715) (7,500,004) (48,335,622

fTERERA/ (RH)

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

BT RELEN Derivative financial instrument settled:
TESRTIA:
- FEEE - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253)  (140,333)
-BEEE - on gross basis
ot Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991)  (613,371) (23,236,701)
MALE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564)  (149,159)
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—fEANE =AM E —FUE
—@AR Z=fEA E—fF ZR¥
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AERE ek
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
A&EE FET FET FET FET FET FET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEEN\F As at 31 December 2008
+=ZA=t+-H
FITERS R Non-derivative cash outflows
aff Liabilities
BBTERES Debt securities issued (6,660,320) (2,078,979  (3,709,327) (25,822,304)  (7,530,588) (45,801,518)
BBTIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (13,068) (44,943 (1,136,283  (2,183,220) - (3,377,514
(6,673,388)  (2,123,922)  (4,845,610) (28,005,524) (7,530,588) (49,179,032)
fTERERA/ (RL) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTSIRELEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
PTAESRIA:
- FREAR - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687)  (106,946) 170 (156,622)
-BEEE - on gross basis
A Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556)  (1,053,100) (17,779,911)
MAZR Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238)  (144,959) (6,808)  (297,066)
—fEANUE =EANKE —FUE
—@AR Z=fEA E—F ERE
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AERE ik
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
NG| FRT FHET FET FRT FHET FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEN\F As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H
FTER SR Non-derivative cash outflows
aff Liabilities
BETEEES Debt securities issued (7,106,009) (2,078,979  (3,709,327) (25,822,304)  (7,530,588) (46,247,207
TEBRERA/ (Rit) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
ETHIRELEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
TESRIA:
- REEE - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687) (106,946) 170 (156,622
-BEEE - on gross basis
it Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556)  (1,053,100) (17,779,911)
MALZER Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238) (144,959 (6,806) (297,066)
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(b) 9 H 2B (b) Maturity analysis
TERBEBEEZRAREEHEEHBF The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
HEBZRI B2 EERBEST ° relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
—fBANE ZEANL —FEHE
BEEH —f@AR ZZf@A E-fF ZRF
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over 1year BENLE ERH L]
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
AEH FHT TR FHT FHRE FHT FHTL T FHTL
The Group HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZEBRE As at 31 December 2009
+-A=+-R
BE Assets
ReRAHES Cash and short-term funds 57,248 3,593,937 410,934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
ERds Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,296 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24,407 43,802,727
EHRE Investment securities
- AN E - available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025720 3,613,064
] - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674  3,525677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
68,429  5980,957 2,858,563 5,938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
g% Liabilities
RREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BEIERES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
BETREES Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394
- 1,202062 4,728,730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5,904,860 1,462,318 47,977,785
“EAWE  =EANE —FHE
BB -@AR E=A -4 E5F
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over 1year BENLE ERE B8
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
EVT] FHT FHRT FHT FHRT FHT FHT T FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=2BhE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-R
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 44,740 3,573,012 307,000 - - - - 3,924,752
Enas Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,897 4,129,002 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
EHRE Investment securities
-AHNE - avallable-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
] - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674  3,525677 476,335 - 5817,998
BREBEAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
54,283 5820612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
8 Liabilities
RRAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BEIERES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
- 1,208693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25318,031  5904,860 1,462,318 45,957,391
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—EARE  =EAME —FLE
D 5|5 —EAR Z=fEA E—F ERE
Repayable Upto  Over1month Over 3 months Over 1 year AEMNE E4y-] g
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
AEE THL THT THL THT THT S THT S
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTNE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H
3 Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 38,444 2,683,864 164,800 206,150 - - - 3,093,258
ERER Loan portfolio 8729 1,006,930 1425123 5,169,544 27,003,734 16,136,222 60,366 50,810,648
BHRE Investment securities
- At E - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 82721 2,062,552
-HEZEH - held-to-maturity - 452472 355433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BREBAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 348442 348,442
47173 4,840,122 2458325 6,777,516 29,999,801 16,545,094 1,251,535 61,919,566
8 Liabilities
REEE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
BREAERER Debt securities issued - 6842666 2,387,257 5835259 20,922519 6,827,287 - 42,814,988
BRTERBESR Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 99,301 87,224 830,998 2,208,101 - - 3,225,624
- 6941967 2474481 6,666,257 23,130,620 6,827,287 908,740 46,949,352
—EARE  =EAKE —ELE
D 5|5 —fAAR Z=f8A Z—F ZRF
Repayable Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year REHRE ERH ok
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year t0 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
NG| TR TET TR TET FET FTET FET FET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=1-H
AE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 36,342 2,666,193 164,800 187,400 - - - 3,054,735
BREA Loan portfolio 7,869 937,317 1,248,549 4,791,178 25,265,027 14,422,538 55,580 46,728,058
EHRE Investment securities
- A E - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 842721 2,052,552
-HERIES - held-to-maturity - 452,472 355433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BRRAE Reinsurance assefs - - - - - - 348442 348,442
44211 4,752,838 2,281,751 6,380,400 28,261,094 14,831,410 1,246,749 57,798,453
afE Liabilities
RREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
BRETEBES Debt securities issued - 7288001 2,387,257 5835259 20,922,519 6,827,287 - 43,260,323
- 7288001 2,387,257 5835259 20,922,519 6,827,287 908,740 44,169,063
15 455 PR I el Bt 3.5 Mortgage insurance risk

REBRZEEN ERHTEBRE
ZBRE - sMEEBBRERRE/RNRE
Eim A ERIBERZ YEEBERN25%
£30% W E RSB EEYEE
B E TS HEIR5% °

EARBRENNERSCREREFELE
HYRIRENE S BT S B R R B RO TNRERE
1 o RIBRERENASORE - AR
REBEH - Fih MBETERT ©

The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30%
of the property value of a mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio
below 95% at origination.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk
is random and therefore unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely
to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to diversify
the type of mortgage insurance risks accepted and within each of
the key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a
slump in the local property market. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A
drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity
of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set
aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates
technical reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and
the method prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group
also takes out quota-share reinsurance from its approved
mortgage reinsurers in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The
Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in
accordance with the approved selection framework set by the
Credit Committee. The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject
to periodic reviews.

As at 31 December 2009, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%,
profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by
1%, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) higher.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
of those financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices
are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are
applied for liabilities.

IR E B DFE
Carrying value Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
T FET FiEx FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

SRMEE Financial assets

RekBHES Cash and short-term funds

BEREAFE Loan portfolio, net

FHIEE Investment securities
e — held-to-maturity

SRAas Financial liabilities

Hib B E Other liabilities

B EBITEEES Debt securities issued

B EBITIRBES Mortgage-backed

securities issued

4,067,798 3,093,258 4,067,798 3,093,258
43,788,716 = 50,760,112 43,788,716 = 50,760,112

5,817,998 5,614,666 5,935,727 5,644,179

4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
41,648,925 38,101,673 41,655,241 38,108,085

2,020,394 3,225,624 2,011,421 3,211,027

BT AATEREEM T5I5%
BB

(a) B B i 0 ¥ 4
ReRERESBRRITER < F
EERNATEMNERAE - L
TR (ERHBELR=EA) Oh
AARHEDENMERRBEERR
BEBHIRITEETIH MK RRGHRF
HFAEZHRRAESRE - Bt - 7
HKOAFENSREERRE -

(b) ek AL 4 5 U AR 4% 45 W 08 b
ZR AU w3 B AT 00 45 48 % 27
ESEANIRBERERIIER -
PN BERAELEEN R -
Hit - EREE REBITIRBES
MEEMERRFENAGBMAEE

The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate

the fair values of financial instruments:

(a) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated
fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3
months, is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is
approximately equal to their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued
under the MBS Pass-Through Programme
Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-
backed securities issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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(c) Investment securities

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held
to maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured
at fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this
information is not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity
and yield characteristics.

(d) Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(e) Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS

Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(f) Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR”) in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value
of other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

(g) Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial

statements

There is no (2008: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

TRIFRAFERRBLRBEAT IR
RENATESTNEMIA

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair
value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

s HAEERBERERTIST ZHE

(-8 :

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1);

s RE—ERERZHEIN  HEER
BEEEE (MRE) KHE (WRE
RIEE) AIBR 28R (F_8) &

e Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

s FHEERBBYIERABE LT
S8R (TABRZ8R) (F=F) -

* Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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*Em EUY
The Group The Company
E—m E=g @t =& E=m@ @t
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
THR FHR TR T FHRT FHT
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
RZEEAE+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2009
BE Assets
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
EHRA Investment securities
- e - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
=t Liabilities
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 158246 158,246 - 158246 158,246
NEBAEETAAATE Debt securities issued designated
2t AERR as at fair value through profit or
BRE{IEBER loss upon initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394
AEERARRREFEEABRE= Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
MEemITHE- categorized as Level 3.
3.7 BAREH 3.7 Capital management
AEFERER (K REHERY N The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
BRAREEN =] BE) ME /MW concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
T position, are:
o FEBBFFATTHE BT A A e To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
R ([HBaAla&]) fIEERR Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
E Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);
o MRALEFELEMNES e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
BERRRIEHER so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;
e WRAEENRBREREER: e To support the Group’s stability and growth;
e BAMEENRRKRNFENRE e To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
A &ECRETRENSRERA optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and
wER &
e WFRIEEMNEAEMIFERE ¢ To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
R e its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the guidelines
issued by the Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets
ratio (“CAR”) stipulated in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated
as a ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the Group’s total capital
base to the sum of its total on-balance sheet and total off-balance
sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board
of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued
by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR
guidelines must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group’s capital base comprises share capital, share premium,
retained profits and contingency reserve created by appropriations
of retained profits, allowance for loan impairment under collective
assessment and other reserve.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels
of risk embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets
according to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying
risks, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar
treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposures, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential
losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the ratios of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During
the year, the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
by the Financial Secretary.

2009 2008

FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

[N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

R A Retained profits 3,925,694 = 3,485,513

Rk Contingency reserves 189,833 123,545

HAth 8 Other reserves 160,329 (29,928)
A& A EERURE Allowance for loan impairment under

B {E 2 collective assessment 14,011 50,536

BABE Total capital base 6,289,867 5,629,666

BARE & L K CAR 9.5% 8.7%
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in listed
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and measured at
fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to
mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a way that
performance is measured at Group level in single segment for mortgage
business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage businesses are located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong
includes the mortgage assets in Korea, investment in a joint venture in
Malaysia and investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of
China. The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance based
on geographical segments.
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TREVNEEZE-_ZZNFR_ZFZT\F+=-F The following tables represent revenue and profit information for operating
—t+—BIEFELELDBERWEEREFER o segments for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. Comparative
AL EHFODEBIATAEE ST HREEE]  figures have been restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.
EBIREART o

B *ER 2%
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FRT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEZE_ZZNFT+-BA=1+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2009
A B A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
A B Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
FRLEHA Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
H b A Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
FE TGN Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
T Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
RET IR B AT A 48 & i 7 Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
B ROR (B 2 £ Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 36,837 - 36,837
BihE &R a5 A Share of profit of a joint venture - 1,922 1,922
W 758 Bl g A Profit before tax 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
TE Taxation (144,186)
AN E R A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FAREARFX Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845
& FEB E
Hong Kong ~ Non-Hong Kong Total
FIBTT FBTT FHBT
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BEZZZ/\FT+ZA=T—"HLFE Year ended 31 December 2008
F 2 A Interest income 1,475,276 349,938 1,825,214
FEZH Interest expense (840,697) (274,667) (1,115,364)
=R ESRI PN Net interest income 634,579 75,271 709,850
E g A Other income 102,100 - 102,100
WA Operating income 736,679 75,271 811,950
g Operating expenses (118,844) (22,905) (141,749)
ARETRUE AT A A8 A g Operating profit before impairment 617,835 52,366 670,201
EFURERE Loan impairment charge (36,225) = (36,225)
& & REE Share of loss of a joint venture - (8) (8)
W 758 Bl g A Profit before tax 581,610 52,358 633,968
TE Taxation (28,974)
REZ i F Profit for the year 604,994
FREARHEZ Capital expenditure during the year 7,389 = 7,389

174



B 1218 75 5 A R A7) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited ZEF N FE 5, Annual Report 2009

3 FER Y
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZEZEAF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2009
DBREE Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
EENRIEE Investment in a joint venture - 115,190 115,190
REE Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
DEEE Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533
B FEA @
Hong Kong ~ Non-Hong Kong Total
FHT FHIT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
R_ZEENF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2008
DREE Segment assets 49,496,237 16,018,565 65,514,802
AERNEIERE Investment in a joint venture = 113,532 113,532
BEE Total assets 49,496,237 16,132,097 65,628,334
HDIEEE Segment liabilities 43,847,305 16,018,565 59,865,870
6. FlEUWA 6. Interest income
AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
I%f%‘ Hae Loan portfolio 1,060,315 1,311,680
BeREHEs Cash and short-term funds 36,328 147,117
BHEEE-—LEW Investment securities — listed 82,176 68,731
BHEKE-IELT Investment securities — unlisted 159,482 297,686
1,338,301 1,825,214

NEEZFBWAEFEA88,00087L (ZZZ/\  Included within interest income is HK$488,000 for the year (2008: HK$690,000)
F 1 690,000 7T) ERIEREERMESTFE  with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.
N

7. FIEH 7.  Interest expense
AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BARAFABHEBNRITERR Bank loans, debt and MBS issued
BRITERE RIEBES wholly repayable within 5 years 241,376 887,654
BARAFARNBHEENE BT Debt and MBS issued not
B RIREE 5 wholly repayable within 5 years 59,218 227,710
300,594 1,115,364

NEE R B H B 1E220,700,0008 7T (—ZFZE  Included within interest expenses are HK$220.7 million (2008: HK$399.3 million)
J\AF : 399,300,00078 7T) W IE A A FEE{LET  for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
ANEZMEREE -
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8. HAthllt A 8.  Other income
*%E
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REERBRAKBHIR Early prepayment fees and late charges 19,742 26,289
BEmERE 5 (sE14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 149,429 93,365
e i =5 Exchange difference 5,833 (40,455)
R TARAFEZS Change in fair value of financial instruments 13,011 (43,108)
Al E FHIREHNREUW A  Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 42,224 42,867
HEMHHERENKZFE  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(P 3E11) investments (Note 11) 5,277 26,026
Hith Others (3,928) (2,884)
231,588 102,100
SR TAAFEZSHEENATSENLM :  Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)

METAAFESHNE BFTARQAFE HKS$783.3 milion (2008: HK$1,482.2 million gain) fair value loss on hedging

E518783,300,0008 L (== Z )\F : Wz  instruments designated as fair value hedge and HK$785.4 million (2008:

1,482,200,000/8 70) R ¥R EH AFE  HK$1,482.2 million loss) fair value gain on the hedged items; and (i) HK$31.6

U 25785,400,0008 L (ZZZ)\F : HE  milion (2008: HK$5.4 million gain) fair value loss on derivatives designated

1,482,200,00077T)  R()FETAUAFESE  as at fair value through profit or loss and HK$42.5 million (2008: HK$48.5

Lt ABRMOTA T E A F(EEE31,600,000  million loss) fair value gain on issued debt securities designated as at fair

/%E (ZZEZN\F : 255,400,000 7T) &% value through profit or loss. In 2009, there is no ineffectiveness recognised in
NFEBEFABZMERITEEESATF  the income statement that arises from cash flow hedges (2008: nil).

fﬁﬂ&ﬁ42,5oo,ooo;%7t (ZZZTN\F : B

48,500,000/87T) « R -ZEZNF - HENKE

RNFER EETTIEE_{;/&WF i 2 4 89 S RUE B

(ZZENF : &) -

9. KEH 9.  Operating expenses
RE
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EERA Staff costs
o RAER Salaries and benefits 102,633 91,855
RIRGRRA — R H G2 Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,608 5,216
F N Premises
e Rental 7,268 6,368
HApb Others 7,050 6,333
= kA Directors’ emoluments - -
& (fit24) Depreciation (Note 24) 10,890 8,936
B B AR TS Financial information services 5,593 5,164
R & Consultancy fees 6,702 6,327
Hfbagea i Other operating expenses 12,092 11,550
157,836 141,749
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10. A% B <2 10. Auditor’s remuneration
rEHE

The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
E IR Audit services 867 690
H 1t AR 7% Other services 1,186 901
2,053 1,591

11, & S RE 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale

R investments
rEH

The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

HEAH SR ERUZEFEE ¢ Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- R—A—HEHER — realisation of amounts recognised in reserves

i 1B R FIR up to 1 January 3,522 24,329
— AEEEAWZFE — net gain arising in current year 1,755 1,697
5,277 26,026

12, B [ 43 (B 46) 12. Write-back of loan impairment allowances/

(loan impairment charge)

AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FHT FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BIORER R (B ) Write-back of loan impairment allowances/
(loan impairment charge)
— #& A (F3E20(0) — collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 36,837 (36,225)
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13. BiIA 13. Taxation
(a) A EF R BCAR R BRI BEIE 2y - (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REE
The Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEFEE Hong Kong profits tax
— REEZEE — Provision for current year 126,419 39,933
- BAFEREETR — Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
141,529 42,175
IEFERTE Deferred taxation
- AFEEXH(ER) — Charge/(credit) for current year 2,657 (13,201)
144,186 28,974
BLANGE [E E A Wb 5 FE R R A% Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (ZZZF/)\F : 16.5%) KIF1 (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
KETRBBNESTHEE - BLEHIA Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
B EEZ16.656% (ZEENF ¢ under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
16.5%) M E EH R E 2L (2008: 16.5%).
FERE o
N6 (B 9 BR B A R A A5 T8 B ER The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
EANETENERSENEZERN the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate
N of Hong Kong as follows:
REHE
The Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 35 Bt A Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
#£16.5% (ZFZ )\ F ! Calculated at a taxation rate of
16.5%) BT R+ & 16.5% (2008:16.5%) 189,786 104,605
EiEE & AR CEF) Tax effect of share of
BB G E (profit)/loss of a joint venture (317) 1
BRI R WA Income not subject to taxation (91,044) (138,820)
R Dok b2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 30,651 60,946
BEFEBRETR Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
THIER X Taxation charge 144,186 28,974
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b) BN B R BEIE % % - (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
RE PN/NG]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BBFEHREE Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 138,329 47,866 131,850 47,866
EEFHEEE Deferred tax liabilities/
(BE) (assets) 15,209 (28,904) 15,213 (28,889)
153,538 18,962 147,063 18,977
—EENFR_EEN\F+ A There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
;+— H - BiEE R E A RBER 31 December 2009 and 2008.
FEFRIE o
LL%)“LIE (BE) BENETZEMARK The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the
DRFRNEFHOT - movements during the year are as follows:
AEE
The Group
AR
IRBIEHTE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AFEEE BEREF
tax and HIEEE Fair value Cash flow e
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total

FHET TR FTHAT TR FTAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZEZENF—H—H Asat 1 January 2008 2,676 (784) (199) 25,684 1,165 28,542
RUEERA (GFA)~  (Credit)/charged to the
kR income statement (179) (138,211) 189 — - (18,201)
T AEZA (FTzE32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) - - - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
RZZTZTNF As at 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—8 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
& T Akl Charged to the income
statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657
RiEz= A Bk (17£32) Charged to equity (Note 32) - - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R=ZZBZhEF As at 31 December 2009
+=—A=+—H 3,448 (12,299) - 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
ARA
The Company
RERE
IRFBEHE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances A {E#E) b P
tax and Fair value Cash flow k]
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total

TR FTAT TR FTAT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZEZENF—H—H Asat 1 January 2008 2,676 (779) 25,684 1,165 28,746
sFAMKZERA Credit to the income statement (179) (13,211) — - (18,390
T AREZA (FTzE32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) - - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
RZZTZTNF As at 31 December 2008

+=—A=+—8 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889
& T Akl Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
R AHER (f5E32) Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R=ZZBZhEF As at 31 December 2009

+=B=+-8 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
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14. % i DR i 2605 A UC46 R 14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FHT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERE Gross premiums written 839,042 477,843
BRERRE Reinsurance premiums (54,392) (119,264)
RBe B8 F 5 (FifsE27(a) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 784,650 358,579
ARom BRAR B KO 38 0 )F R Increase in unearned premiums, net (613,572) (224,009)
Bm R E F 5 (:E27(a) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 171,078 134,570
EERNBRR (HE27(0) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (21,649) (41,205)
B2 mEREFRE (fTs) Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 149,429 93,365
EERAX (fizEa) Management expenses (Note a) (14,399) (10,144)
AR Wz Underwriting gains 135,030 83,221
P aE Note
(a) BIEMZ AT LET HN—BD - (a) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.
15, AAF R Vi A 15. Profit for the year
AN BTSRRI AN F E %R 5973,951,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
HIT(Z T\ 603,763,000/57T) ° to the extent of HK$973,951,000 (2008: HK$603,763,000).
16. R 16. Dividend
/NG|
The Company
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRR S TR EEAR0.257 7T Proposed dividend of HK$0.25
(ZZZTN\F : 0.125%7T) (2008: HK$0.125) per ordinary share 500,000 250,000
RIZZNFEN_ZZN\FERE2.5EE  The dividend paid in 2009 in respect of 2008 was HK$250 million. The
Lo RZE—ZFNH ﬂ Jr H  ZZEEFHIRE  directors proposed a final dividend in respect of 2009 of HK$0.25 per ordinary
ZEENFRARKE EBAK0.257 7 ° ItE share on 20 April 2010. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
THEERE 1435‘]7% i _gz\hi—f—iﬁ =-+  payable as at 31 December 2009.
—HHEMNEE -
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17. Bla REHEE 17. Cash and short-term funds
RE RAR]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FER FET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITH® Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
HR1TE HA 17 3K Time deposits with banks 4,010,550 3,054,814 3,880,012 3,018,393
4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735

MEESREBEAME REKERRESBEERIE  For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
WTBERSBEET=EA NEI R4k o comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of transaction.

AEE FNG
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHEx THT FHEx THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITH ® Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
R1TE HFER Time deposits with banks 3,770,871 2,726,164 3,646,012 2,708,493
RENRERIRELIBEE  Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608 3,690,752 2,744,835
18. FEULH]E I TE K 18. Interest and remittance receivables
AEE FNG
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
TEx THT TEx THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT IEHEUYEE Interest receivable from
— FEBHEE 4 — interest rate swap contracts 443,221 379,353 440,007 374,374
— BHEKE — investment securities 77,432 89,956 77,432 89,956
— RITEHHFR — time deposits with banks 169 2,589 131 2,554
BERHEAHEWFR S K  Interest receivable and instalments,
pal- NP in transit from loan portfolio 189,708 862,587 181,239 855,707
710,530 1,334,485 698,809 = 1,322,591
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19.

i em T H
(a) MBI 72K T 34
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EMANS B REeR - Lillg
MHAMEZERE - RIOTESRE
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19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group’s financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative
instrument are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
or hedging instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as
defined in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement.

Currency forwards represents commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair
value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and
the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates
relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of
derivative instruments held are set out below.
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AEE
The Group
2009 2008
an APE &K/ ATE
aas Fair values ERDH Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional BE aE notional BE a 1%
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FET FHET FET FHET FHEIT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
) EBEEARFEZ(L () Derivatives designated as at
SABENITETA fair value through profit or loss
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
Gt Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) - - =
E¥EH Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084 (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) wBEABRFEEH (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETA fair value hedge
& Interest rate swaps 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847) 25,357,353 1,866,586 (318)
E¥EH Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,168,741 (43,368) 1,990,241 (52,808)
(i) EERBRETL R (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETA cash flow hedge
E s Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) 14,769,947 28,549 (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28,5649 (12,025)
BHERITEEE/(AfE)  Total recognised derivative
B assets/(liabilities) 1,317,375  (158,246) 2,237,626 (214,994)
VNG|
The Company
2009 2008
e AFE an/ ATE
EREE Fair values EHER Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional BE =1 notional EE AfE
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FER FRT FER FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
() BEARFEEEE () Derivatives designated as at
SABEMITATA fair value through profit or loss
lESEE Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
&M Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) = = =
B¥ES Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084 (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) EERDTEL® (i) Derivatives designated as
MPTETR fair value hedge
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847) 23,467,353 1,788,539 (318)
EEs Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,124,468 (43,368) 1,912,194 (52,808)
(i) FHEABREREMH (i) Derivatives designated as
MPTETR cash flow hedge
K Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) 14,769,947 28549  (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28,549 (12,025)
BRERITEEE/(AfE)  Total recognised derivative
1B assets/(liabilities) 1,273,102  (158,246) 2,159,479 (214,994)
(b) ¥ 93 ) (b) Hedging activities

WOTETARAFEH THBEDR
b BLEFTREME - ARK

BEIPER

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if

they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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(i) AFEH®F
AEBNATFEETEERE
BRREERES B IAAT
1B B fa] B 1E 2 B) 5| BU 7 R
[\ F82 B0 | 3 [ B S H o

(i) Fair value hedges
The Group’s fair value hedge principally consists of interest
rate and currency swaps that are used to protect interest
rate risk resulting from any potential change in fair value of
fixed rate financial instruments.

(i) BEERE (ii) Cash flow hedges
AEBEFEABRSREINE
EiGEERINE R T ER €
T B E A R B SNE R R -

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising
from variability of cash flows from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments using currency swaps
under cash flow hedge.

(c) T RA B WA AR A £ BB
BEERAREEMAMEGBERKE
EEMITETAARNRAN < BEXR
REERBREBRERBEAHEE

(c) Replacement costs and potential future credit exposures
The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked to
market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer to
Lt &5 (MFE3.7) st ER & « A the amount as computed in accordance with the Capital-to-
SEERBIZZHFIERANNE Assets ratio guidelines (Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced
hi2kd any non-performance by its counterparties.

ITETEAGHNEERARBER
REERBREBHENTX - ZEF2
R ES AR ZE FETERS
BLRHTE -

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements with the counterparties.

184

K&
The Group
2009 2008

BIE R R VBAE AR R

BERE FERK BEKAR FERER

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FERT FET FHET FHT

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

MEEH Interest rate contracts 1,556,847 182,660 2,428,610 203,271
EREHL Exchange rate contracts

— Bz — Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— BE¥RE — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,741,674 1,128,046 2,607,615 1,282,597

PiN/NE|
The Company
2009 2008

TBIEARRK TEFE AR R

BEERAE EEE BERAN EERR

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FET FER FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FEE L Interest rate contracts 1,509,359 179,160 2,345,583 197,521
EEEH Exchange rate contracts

— BE¥is 8 — Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— ¥R — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,694,186 1,124,546 2,524,588 1,276,847
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20. EHAGEHH 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) BEFKALA BRI (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
AEHE AR T
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHT THT FHT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RiENHEE Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BB - Hong Kong 21,980,141 = 27,624,099 20,323,237 25,420,270
— BgHN - Overseas 15,441,285 15,905,032 15,441,285 = 15,905,032
[EES Commeraial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
FHLHEE Securitised portfolio
(PM45E34) (Note 34) 1,314,685 1,878,761 - =
JEIZIBEFRMEA  Non-mortgage portfolio 1,066,616 1,402,756 1,066,616 1,402,756
43,802,727 ' 50,810,648 40,831,138 46,728,058
BERRERE Allowance for loan impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)
43,788,716 = 50,760,112 40,817,163 = 46,678,285

RZZBEZNF+= H =+—8"' K As at 31 December 2009, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted
ERERNREETE - RARFTAR average remaining term of 9 years (2008: 9 years) on a contractual
HWIZBERIRFERNBELT - & basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local
BERAEONETEF RN mortgage loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the
E(:??)\E C ) o HRIBER year 2040.

BARBR_-_ZNTFREH -

ERURERBREBEEETAGHAE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
EEASEBROBHLOT ¢ outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:

rEH PN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

EFRERE Total allowance for loan
WEEREH44E  impairment as a percentage
BWEHNBE DL of the gross loan portfolio 0.03% 0.10% 0.03% 0.11%
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(b) 18 £ 3k AL A 1 $2 % IR A 338 i (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio
RE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FHBT TFERT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HAETE Collective assessment
“—A—A As at 1 January 50,536 13,930 49,773 12,970
1 3H & 5K Loans written off (2,748) 4,227) (2,748) 4,227)
RUzSR A (B E) /  (Released)/charged to
Mk (PHE12) income statement (Note 12) (36,837) 36,225 (36,110) 36,422
Y el 2 85 B 5 Recoveries of loans previously
written off 3,382 4,943 3,382 4,943
BB R ERR Unwind of discount on allowance (322) (335) (322) (335)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773
FHEFRERER  EZEE Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account
REFHERBHOERTE - # the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.
BRI REELRBEREAE There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial
BB ERE - TR BEFURER mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment
52,641,000 T (ZZEZN\F : of HK$2,64 1,000 (2008: HK$3,563,000) has been transferred
3,563,000/8 0) BEE R EWE & to repossessed assets (Note 25).

E (ffat2s) o

LA X EOER EREER Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio
DT basis are analysed as follows:
REH /NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHERT FHB T FHERT FHB T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEFEEEE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 5,377 22,534 5,377 22,534
BERRERRE Allowance for loan impairment (1,811) (6,636) (1,811) (6,636)
3,566 15,898 3,566 15,898
EXRERE Allowance for loan impairment
HREEREE as a percentage of gross
BENBEAL impaired loan portfolio 33.7% 29.4% 33.7% 29.4%
MEERHEE Gross impaired loan portfolio
BELHERES as a percentage of
BENBEAL gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.04% 0.01% 0.05%
LA A A RSN A B R B Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for
FYEE FURE R 512,200,000/ 7T loans not individually identified are HK$12,200,000 (2008:
(ZZZ\F : 43,900,000/ 7T) ° HK$43,900,000).
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(c) BEARALE W Wl AL 0 B ¥ (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio
REERARE
The Group and the Company
2009

RIEEWAER
MIERE AR Y REEKELD
Present value FIE WA RIEAR
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FET FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

LA EAR EUCERIE © Amounts receivable:

-—FR — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
- —FRERFA — after one year
but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
- AF% — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068
REERARF
The Group and the Company
2008

(K FE YT 4
HIEBE SRR HA R Y K FEHFR LY
Present value FE A RIERFE
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET FHET FHET
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

RUAT BRI FEUCERIA © Amounts receivable:

- —FR — within one year 110,808 26,884 137,692
— —FERERER — after one year
but within five years 419,158 85,251 504,409
— AF% — after five years 872,790 100,757 973,547
1,402,756 212,892 1,615,648
R-BZAF+_A=+—HBE= There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
TR N\F+_F=+—H KEH at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 of the Group and
R 2R R A A 7E S e WORRaE the Company.

1R B -
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21. EHEKE 21. Investment securities
(a) WL B 2 (a) Available-for-sale securities
REBERARF
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAFEYERNERSFES  Debt securities at fair value
JE LT Unlisted 2,452,054 1,160,924
REE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 78,466 48,901
REBAIME R T Listed outside Hong Kong 56,824 =
2,587,344 1,209,825
2N A5 BR A9 E A7 5 Other securities at fair value
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,025,720 842,727
Al HEEA5ER Total available-for-sale securities 3,613,064 2,052,552
HthFEHERSGMEEE S RFEH Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
EREET - investment trust.
BEITRBRER DT R EEES Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
LU as follows:
AEBERARA
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITREM S R Banks and other financial institutions 2,452,054 = 1,160,924
N Public sector entities 135,290 48,901
H A Others 1,025,720 842,727
3,613,064 2,052,552
A HEFESNEESHBMMT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
AEBRARF
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
n—A—8 As at 1 January 2,052,552 4,038,250
-yl Additions 3,134,672 17,311,387
BHDEABEEIEER  Reclassification to held-to-maturity
5 debt securities - (641,322)
BE (LENER) Disposals (sale and redemption) (1,811,701) (18,564,231)
X Amortisation 8,539 72,357
NEBEZE Change in fair value 227,272 (147,960)
HNEETE H R Exchange difference 1,730 (15,929)
R+-—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,613,064 2,052,552
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DEKEXLIE € (b) Held-to-maturity securities
AEERARA
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R SR AR BR M E 75 5 %5  Debt securities at amortised cost
RBEE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 1,166,552 = 1,147,001
RBEBIZIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 2,244,441 1,138,537
3,410,993 2,285,538
JE LT Unlisted 2,407,005 3,329,128
BEEEIHE A A Total held-to-maturity securities 5,817,998 @ 5,614,666
EhmESHmE Market value of listed securities
- KAEEIH — held-to-maturity 3,504,167 = 2,291,021

BBETHRBER DT AEEIH

ko

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

=113

s as follows:
REERARQE
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIT R H M B Banks and other financial institutions 3,939,368 3,664,530
NGIRSES Corporate entities 622,626 561,422
DB Public sector entities 715,548 771,730
R BT Central governments 203,287 343,610
Hth Others 247,169 273,374
5,817,998 5,614,666
BEZIPBEFNEHPamT : The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:
REERARQE
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
w—HA—8 As at 1 January 5,614,666 5,500,024
0 Additions 2,923,038 3,036,106
EM AR HEEERFES Reclassification from available-for-sale
debt securities - 641,322
FE [ Redemption (2,731,226) (3,518,682)
B Amortisation (2,838) 3,079
HNEE BE 5, = B Exchange difference 14,358 (47,183)
R+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 5,817,998 5,614,666
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22. MEARHE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
AR H

The Company
2009 2008
Tz T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ELEMRG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 1,000
M8 2~ Bl PR FRIA Due from a subsidiary 1,630,520 2,209,981
1,733,580 2,210,981

B A BT /R GBI AR M E FERE) - I The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
BEHHFIERET B - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

RIZEZNF+-_A=+—H KEABIM  The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 are:

B
BT,/
Rl EN=
FE AR S 3t 2 Particulars of P B R AR 4
g Place of EEBEK issued/registered Effective equity
Name incorporation Principal activities capital held
BEBRBER BB BAKER 1,000,000/ 75 100%
BRAA RIBER BREBREBEIBT
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 100%
Management and servicing of HK$1 ordinary
Limited share each
A BB E R [ RI/HER ARB1ET 90%
BRAA BRED it A AR
Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million 90%
Corporation Limited business registered capital
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23. AEAFAKRE 23. Investment in a joint venture
rEHE
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
®n—A—AH As at 1 January 111,989 =
EE Capital injection - 120,554
kR FIE %R EEEEF (B18) Share of profit/(loss), net of tax 1,922 ®)
SNEETE W 2= 58 (M1 3E32) Exchange differences (Note 32) 1,279 (8,557)
115,190 111,989
A& RNEFTRRIR Due from a joint venture - 1,543
R+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 115,190 113,532
/NG|

The Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JE LT - BEKANE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554
A& NRIFTRFKIA Due from a joint venture - 1,543
120,554 122,097

TETZAFF+_A=+—H A% Qa8 The details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2009 are:

‘I% mE
HERE
TRRA S
FE AR 7+ B BETRANEE FFr #5 A% £ 48 5l % of
R Place of B Nominal value of Class of ordinary shares
Name incorporation Principal activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC BRA R RIBERERES BB g ilike 50%
Berhad FREESB1T
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each
AEBREERARINEROT The Group’s interest in the joint venture is as follows:
PR A A
BE =0 WA EFL/ (B8) % of
Assets Liabilities Income Profit/(Loss) Interest held
THT THEL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZNF+=-A=+—H Asat31 December 2009 231,855 1,475 6,777 3,844 50%
RZZEZN\F+=-_A=+—H Asat31 December 2008 227,365 3,387 3,703 (16) 50%
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/7y .
24. B E&E 24. Fixed assets
REM
The Group
WAERE -
R RER
AENE Office
#{&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture £ Motor ity
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
FiEx FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ARE Cost
RZEZNF—A—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
R=ZZFEBEAE+=-HA=1+—H Asat31December 2009 9,175 7,389 127,498 226 144,288
E i Accumulated depreciation
RZZEENF—F—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5,284 101,375 151 112,141
AFEEIE (E9) Charge for the year (Note 9) 1,627 725 8,482 56 10,890
R=-Z2FEAFE+=-H=+—H As at31December 2009 6,958 6,009 109,857 207 123,031
BREFE Net book value
R-ZBEBEAFE+=-HA=+—H As at31December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
R-_ZEZN\F+_-_A=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
NG
The Company
DN
R RER
HEME Office
#{&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture X Motor et
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#x FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ﬁi$1§ Cost
RZZEZNF—H—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 = 15,111
R-ZEZFEAE+=-HA=1+—H Asat31December 2009 8,639 6,518 126,171 226 141,554
/\E'Jrﬁ% Accumulated depreciation
—ZEENF—R—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5284 101,375 151 112,141
$¢F;%ﬁ% Charge for the year 1,480 553 8,324 56 10,413
R=ZZFEZBEAFE+=-A=1+—H As at31December 2009 6,811 5,837 109,699 207 122,554
R FE Net book value
R=-Z2FEAFE+=-H=+—H As at31December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
RZZEZEN\FE+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
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25. TEAFERIE - e SH A 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

HE
RE EN/NE]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W [el & & Repossessed assets 3,317 3,149 3,317 3,149
DRIERES Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
EUW AT HE (ET)  Dividend receivable from
KBRS available-for-sale
investments (listed) 15,530 12,860 15,530 12,860
H Others 12,998 13,796 17,084 21,359
32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118

26. JEATHRIE ~ FEATBH S & 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and

== . ege .
HAth & 15 other liabilities
rEH FiN/NE]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FTET FHT TERT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FEHERIE R EFM S Accounts payable

and accrued expenses 126,205 81,475 172,018 134,464
H e RIR Other payable - = 591,108 742,966
Hith & F Other liabilities 4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
Hih#tE Other provisions 14,232 13,338 14,083 13,200

4,274,177 4,183,693 4,910,949 4,979,510

EMmBaEREAN -_ZZE=F+_AK-ZZ Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

mE—AEEBEATHE ([F8%FE]) BT enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of

EEMNRBERMEEELHRIEERE - the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘HKSAR”) in December 2003
and January 2004.

HE-_ZTAF+-_A=+—H > A2QaMA Upto 31 December 2009, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
Bauhinia MBS Limited £ £ 30188 TIZIBE 5  loans to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
ERBH WHEZRERRLFELXHEMNIE  continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the
- MRRBEERAIEFHEEFE] - WK extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to
[ E b fE S 5RIE EE AR — %5 e Bauhinia MBS Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised.
Limited®BE - R-ZZNF+_A=+—  As at 31 December 2009, other payable was HK$591,108,000 (2008:
= RPN/} ﬁﬁf’lﬂk MERPHWEHMBEMNZES  HK$742,966,000) in the Company’s statement of financial position.
591,108,000/ 7T (ZZ =\ 4 : 742,966,000

BT °

193



B3 6 I 5 R A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A =5 A Y e g eqe . .

27. RBxEE R EE 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

FEBERAFA NEE R AA R
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
9 2008
EX ) BRI B £t BRE B
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Fi#T FHET FHRT FHT BT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aom AR B R E Provision for unearned premium 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
RABREE Provision for outstanding claims

- BaH/(kE) 8 R - claims reported/(recovery) 2,091 (27) 2,118 188 (41) 229
- BEABRRPRER - claims incurred but not reported 87,800 25,390 62,410 79,182 37,230 41,952
89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217 908,740 348,442 560,298

(a) A% 000 DR ¢ J s 528 ) 03 AT o

(a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums

AEBREDT REERAARA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
£ ) BRE FHE ESt| BRE bk
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET THET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®—A—H As at 1 January 829,370 311,253 518,117 658,569 364,461 294,108
FREWERE (Fi714)  Premiums written during the year
(Note 14) 839,042 54,392 784,650 477,843 119,264 358,579
ERNDHERE (F514)  Premiums eamed during the year
(Note 14) (295,985)  (124,907) (171,078) (307,042)  (172,472)  (134,570)
R+=ZA=1+—H As at 31 December 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
(b) A Ye v 5 HEflii 52 W) 2> B F (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEBREDT REERAARA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
£ ) BRE FEE ESt| BRE bk
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET THET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®—A—H As at 1 January 79,370 37,189 42,181 2,817 1,922 895
RENL:ES Claims paid (1,804)  (1,969) 165 (486) (400) (86)
BlkEEZR Claims recovery 1,207 674 533 477 310 167
BEERER (M14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- EREHE - claims reported 2,500 1,310 1,190 146 78 68
- BESBKRBERER - clams incurred but not reported 8,618  (11,841) 20,459 76416 35279 41,137
®+=-R=+—H As at 31 December 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181

(c) FABEFE R
EITRERRAAE  EEERHE
HWRERELFREEEMALTIHE
RenEmREGE  ARBETRR
“ERNFR-BENEFT A=
T—R FAEEERHRREE-

(c) Liability adequacy test
The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2009
and 2008, the Group’s insurance liabilities are adequate.

- 194



S 1%38 7% % B BR A 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited —Z T A F F 3, Annual Report 2009

28. AL 4 AKX 28. Advance from Exchange Fund

INEESBBEBEEREARRIEMI00E  The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the Company with a
BT (ZEZNF  300FB L) EREE - HK$30 billion (2008: HK$30 billion) revolving credit facility. Advance from
HNE R S IR R B EEE R 0 ™S the Exchange Fund is unsecured and has no fixed term of repayment. Interest
FERAB - MR _ZTTZNF+-_H=+—H % is charged at market rate. As at 31 December 2009, there was no
EEWEHREENGES (ZZTZT//\F 80/ outstanding balance under this facility (2008: HK$8 billion).

BIT) ©
29. CEATES S 29. Debt securities issued
rEE AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fi#T FHET Fi#T FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R85 R A 51 BR Y Debt securities carried
BxES at amortised cost
B TEEIES DIP notes 4,218,169 8,123,942 4,218,169 8,569,277
TEEFHETr8/%  RBIP and other notes
HhEH - 86,980 - 86,980
TREESH A AT BR Y Total debt securities carried
BEIEE S BT at amortised cost 4,218,169 = 8,210,922 4,218,169 8,656,257
EEBAFEYHHN  Debt securities designated
B H S as fair value hedge
B LA EIES DIP notes 24,013,513 22,517,865 24,013,513 22,517,865
TEBEH3775rEI%  RBIP and other notes
HAh B 1,760,614 2,619,612 1,760,614 2,619,612
FEREFHEITETEIES MTN notes 11,656,629 4,753,174 11,656,629 = 4,753,174
BEARNFEL MRS  Total debt securities designated
EUECE G as fair value hedge 37,430,756 = 29,890,651 37,430,756 = 29,890,651
RIBEREBIEES L Debt securities designated
AFEB{LFt ABE  as at fair value through profit
HERES or loss upon initial recognition
B TEEIES DIP notes 2,329,306 4,358,210 2,329,306 4,358,210
TEESH3775r2I%  RBIP and other notes
HibfE 5 167,341 355,205 167,341 355,205
FHEAfES 1T EIEZS MTN notes 349,501 - 349,501 =
RIIATEREFIEE AL Total debt securities designated
ANFEZFtABE  as at fair value through profit
KBS 5B or loss upon initial recognition 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415
EEITEHESME  Total debt securities issued 44,495,073 = 42,814,988 44,495,073 43,260,323
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RER - REBRYIAERBETZS SR/
fE/2,272,000,0008 L (ZEZ )\ F .
4,113,450,000/% 7T) & & EBENA A FEZ LG
ANB#E - ZESRMABIATEEHRNESE
FEH R - RYIATERFIEE BA R FEE
Lt ABERNeREEREERASERES
HRERIBRERERBEAZNNSED
581,052,000/ 70 (ZZEZ /\F : %10,465,000
BT e

7

ZERERURNTEIENEREBEREEN
BEXBEREARBZEERRE

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition
HK$2,272,000,000 (2008: HK$4,113,450,000) nominal value of such
financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value
changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates for the
debt securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying
amount of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition is HK$581,052,000 (2008: HK$10,465,000
higher) lower than the amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at fair value.

ERTEBEFNEHBPMMT . The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
AEE /NG|
The Group The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET FHBT TFERT FHBT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

w—A—H As at 1 January 40,967,452 32,958,185 41,412,787 33,064,076
RAFEEHET Issuance for the year 22,688,680 24,405,704 29,092,736 28,065,344
o AFEEER Less: Redemption for the year (19,645,595) = (16,362,840) (26,494,986)  (19,683,036)
HNEEBE S =5 Exchange difference 13,083 (33,597) 13,083 (33,597)

FEBEESR Total nominal value 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
TRAEEDS Unamortised portion of discount (665,658) (83,670) (665,658) (83,670)
AEEAE Fair value adjustment 1,137,111 1,931,206 1,137,111 1,931,206

R+=-—RA=+—H As at 31 December 44,495,073 42,814,988 44,495,073 43,260,323

REEFEITHES ! Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEE ARR
The Group The Company

EHITA BEES % EHITA BEMES %

i SRS | RTHE Ha BTHA EShS |

DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN

FHx FH7 Fix Fix FH7 FHx

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETEHEAEE Amount issued at nominal value 15,462,000 - 7,226,680 21,866,056 - 7,226,680

2 4B IE Consideration received 14,881,380 - 7,479,360 21,285,435 - 7,179,360
FrECETHNEREFYBAREEEEIFE Al the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and

£ MBETZEFEBESFSERE—
ERIEFBRERE

/'L)\)\L/é?

are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
refinancing.
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30. EEEAT A 2 30. Mortgage-backed securities issued
@
The Group
2009 2008
FET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREBHER AT RAIZIBES MBS at amortised cost
RieE ST &l MBS Programme 60,305 83,522
BauhiniaiZz 18 & #{L 5T £l Bauhinia MBS Programme 990,815 = 1,174,055
1,051,120 1,257,577
EERDAFEETWIRBES MBS designated at fair value hedge
Bauhinia 118 F (L 5T & Bauhinia MBS Programme 969,274 = 1,968,047
BB ATIRIBE H 4858 (MT3E37) Total MBS issued (Note 37) 2,020,394 3,225,624
®n—A—H As at 1 January 3,147,577 4,203,483
A FRER Less: Redemption for the year (1,171,456)  (1,055,906)
BwEHREEBE Total nominal value 1,976,121 3,147,577
N EFAE Fair value adjustment 44,273 78,047
R+ZA=+—8© As at 31 December 2,020,394 3,225,624

FBRBESFEAFERATNIEIFET - LA Al MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
EAAFEEIZIBEREAIRMTEESLMETT ©  purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
B EFHEAF1,905,793,0008 7L (ZZZ )\ Company. HK$1,905,793,000 (2008: HK$2,621,727,000) of mortgage
F 1 2,621,727,000/870) EEAFTETTIZIBE  portfolio are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 37). Out of the total
HFEHEM B (HE37) - 2 %TIRB\E  MBSissued, nominal value of HK$1,276,120,000 (2008: HK$1,707,577,000)
4485 1,276,120,0008 7T (ZZZT )\ &F - are guaranteed by the Company.

1,707,577,0007% 7T) B HEE A AR AR -

31. AR 31. Share Capital
—ZEEAER
—EEN\FE
2009 and 2008
FHT
HK$’000

VETE Authorized
SR EE 1S TR30EMR T E 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BETRAEE Issued and fully paid

BAREE 1S TH 2018 R T AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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32. HAbfEH 32. Other Reserves
AEE
The Group
Rk f#EE N TEFEE H & B
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation taxE
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZEZENF—A—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 - 228,663
AHEHEELFNRAFEZE :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RELEBRTE - unrealised net losses - (147,960) = - (147,960)
- HERER - realisation on disposal - (24,329) = = (24,329)
— B8 (PHEE13(0) ~ tax effect (Note 13(b)) - 29,907 - - 29,907
— B — amortization * = 338 = = 338
RemEH Cash flow hedges
— ERRERBERE - net losses arising from hedges
EERNEBRERE recognized directly in equity - - (86,497) - (86,497)
— Bi1E (M =E13(0) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - 14,338 = 14,338
EHEN =5 Currency translation difference
— A& DA (PHF23) — joint venture (Note 23) - - = (8,557) (8,557)
Hit2HE A Other comprehensive income - (142,044)  (72,159) (8,557)  (222,760)
HIRE & NEEDRARR Transfer of 50% of net risk
REFENS0%E AR EEE premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 26,330 - - - 26,330
£ BB (o 1 2 (R BV A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (5,282) - - - (5,282)
R-ZZNE+=-A=+—H,/ Asat 31 December 2008/
—ZZNF—A—H 1 January 2009 123,545  (21,371)  (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
AHEEELFNRFEES :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RERUHEFE - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227,272
— HERZHR - realisation on disposal - (3,522 = = (3,522)
— Bi1E (PHEE13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) - - (37,311)
— B — amortization * - 2,381 - - 2,381
H & E Cash flow hedges
— EERNEREREER - net gains arising from hedges
A e R A recognized directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— Bi1E (M =E13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) - (4,145)
EMELZS Currency translation difference
— HEAR - subsidiary - - - 158 158
— a2 27 (fiiz23) - joint venture (Note 23) - - - 1,279 1,279
Hh 2 EKA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
HiRE & NEEERARR Transfer of 50% of net risk
REZFENS0%E AR EEE premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
£ BB (o 4 1 2 (R B v A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)
R=ZZAF+=-HA=+—H Asat31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477

C AREEEERAHEERSERERSERIMES

iSNEaES 3

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
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VNG
The Company
ER E DT ERFE A
Contingency Fair value Hedging B
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHET THET FET FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R=ZZEZNF—A—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 228,663
AHEEEELFNATERZS :  Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REREHEFESE - unrealised net losses = (147,960) - (147,960)
— HEREZHR - realisation on disposal - (24,329) - (24,329)
— Bi3E (M52 13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(0)) - 29,907 - 29,907
— B - amortization * - 338 - 338
REemEH Cash flow hedges
— EERESERELH — net losses arising from hedges
EEREEFE recognized directly in equity = - (86,497) (86,497)
— BiaR (fF=E13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - 14,338 14,338
HihZ2ERA Other comprehensive income - (142,044) (72,159) (214,203)
B R B A B R R B Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
REFHENS0%ZER KB earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 26,330 - - 26,330
HEREERRZRE &F Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (65,282) - - (5,282)
R-ZTZ/\FE+-A=1+—H,/ Asat 31 December 2008/
—ETNFE-A—H 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) 35,608
AEHEEFNA T EZE Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RERWEHFHA - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
— HERKER - realisation on disposal - (3,522) - (3,522)
— 38 (P 13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (37,311) - (37,311)
— g - amortization * - 2,381 - 2,381
Re e Cash flow hedges
— EERESERELH - net gains arising from hedges
EAEN RS EE recognized directly in equity - - 25,126 25,126
— B8 (Pt 13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) = - (4,145) (4,145)
HoAh 2 ERA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
RRE & A R E R R R Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
REFHERS0%ZER K IE earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 76,313 - - 76,313
HEREERRZRE & T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
R-ZZEZBhE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597

* REHEERAHEESAEREFEERHES * amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale

iSNEaES 3

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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33. HLABAANLFI LA EKR
5

(a) B ATREB RN EERHEEE
FATHEHEE - ALTHBREE
REBEAFZENINAL  XHR
BHEEARERZENALINE
BREBAL - BRALAIREA
HHEHMERE -

FA ARBEGEALTEITR
AIRMERETLZEARS - X5
MMEEHIIN TR

33. Material related party transactions

(a) Related parties are those parties which have the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

During the year, the Company entered into various transactions
with related parties on an arm’s length and commercial basis.
The nature of the relationship is set out in the following table:

BRXAMMEE -
R ha
Nature of related
e B transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
BEELE KT BHE AR (2)(9) (19)
The Honourable John TSANG Chun Wah, JP SMERESEERA
Financial Secretary
Controller of the Exchange Fund
BRER %i SBS ' AF#+ ERCHERREH (1) ) (9) (10) (11)
(RZZTNFTR—HEZMA) Chief Executive of the
Norman CHAN Tak Lam, SBS, JP Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(appointed on 1 October 2009)
EER %4 - GBS - AT #+ BESREERAER (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
(RZZZNFTA-BRA) (BEZ=ZZNFNA=TH)
Joseph YAM Chi Kwong, GBS, JP Chief Executive of the
(retired on 1 October 2009) Hong Kong Monetary Authority (up to 30 September 2009)
YREEA  KEEt EEERERBEIRH (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
Peter PANG Sing Tong, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
REXFKE  KF@E+ BECRERREIEH (1) @) (9) (10) (11)
Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EfE®%4 - CVO GBS OBE ' AFHL SHEMEHAERAEA (15)
(RZZEZNEWMA T/ BEA) (AIBEERE HA RIEM A SR
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULL, SHEMEHMEE)
CVO, GBS, OBE, JP Senior Partner of King & Wood
(retired on 16 April 2009) (formerly known as Arculli Fong &
Ng in association with King & Wood)
RFBARK - SBS - AFML MESEBEREBRRER (3) (13)
Professor the Honourable K C CHAN, SBS, JP Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
BREMSEA + SBS + KF#+ LEBHE @)
(RZZENFWA T BEMA) BEEEZEEZ%8
(EZZZTNF=R=1—H)
The Honourable CHAN Kam Lam, SBS, JP Legislative Councillor
(retired on 16 April 2009) Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(up to 31 March 2009)
g Eﬂ&/zzt BB LBEERTARAR (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (14)
(RZZZNEWA T BEZHE) SREEARSELLEE
Louisa CHEANG (appointed on 16 April 2009) Regional Director, Personal Financial Services,
Asia-Pacific
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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(RZZENFWA+TRBRE)
The Honourable SIN Chung Kai, SBS, JP
(retired on 16 April 2009)

(EE-2FNF=A=1—H)
Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(up to 31 March 2009)

BRARSMME -
A i
Nature of
®E B related transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
gt KM+t BHREERRR (3)(13)
The Honourable Ms. Eva CHENG, JP EEREZEBSTRE
Secretary for Transport and Housing
Chairman of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
RIMRZ#% - GBS * BBS * AT #+ BEEEZERZE )
Professor the Honourable Anthony Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP
MAmEEE RERT (FE) BRAREIRE (3) (4) (5) (6)
(RZFZNFMA+HEMR) Deputy Chief Executive of
David LAM Yim Nam Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(retired on 16 April 2009)
FEHERL RORTERDAEFERITBEH (3) (4) (5) (6)
GBM ' GBS ' LLD (Cantab) * A ¥4+ Chairman and Chief Executive of
Dr. the Honourable David LI Kwok Po, The Bank of East Asia, Limited
GBM, GBS, LLD (Cantab), JP
EfffEfE  SBS - KFML BEEEZERZE )

REHTE
Eddie TAN Cheng Soo

TERRTEARE ¢ A5 (B NK)
Regional Treasurer, Asia Pacific, Citibank, N.A.
(based in Singapore)

(12)

1) XRrEARTESRERER
([BEEBSER]) MEENE
BIAPREZERGRBEN
KB - BEARARBITHNER
BHREUTEREERER
e RZEZTAEF  ARQA
RZERBRAEECERX
F80BB L (ZEZTNF
1108 &) °

2 IEECEREASERM
AR RIHRHEB001EHE T fE IR
EE - -R_ZTZThhF+_-A
=+—H8 WEREEHE
(ZZEZTN\F : 80fEH ) B
BT 2 AB2,0708%E T (=
TT)NF 47088 T)

(1)

The Company is a member of the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”) which provides custodian and clearing
agent services for the debt securities issued by the
Company. In 2009, the Company paid HK$0.8 million
(2008: HK$1.1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA for
such services.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the
Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility. As
at 31 December 2009, there was no outstanding balance
(2008: HK$8 billion) and the interest thereon was HK$20.7
million (2008: 4.7 million).
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Rt BRI B B A R A
FIVACE A kAL
MRTEEREREEA
B HAEMBER LB
fiT 1A -

S HEIRBIRRETE - TR
FRERBRRAREARRF
FIVACE kA 3
MPTEEIEREEA
B HEMBER LA(R
BIHA

ZIERETERFHAHER
B E - BL400EBLEB L
BT B AR A FT L1
ZHERMBEANRNTESY
SREREAE - HEBABRE
REMTBE I HA -

BIERIEERTT - FE2001E7H
TEEBAFRITHERLR
BIET St A & B A O SR
TEEAEMEEAE  H
AEBER L[5l ®M
ﬁq °

BERLTHEAREBELHA
S REEGHEA  2ER
ANE—HRZIERBES
77 (‘B #5308 3 7T Bauhiniaiz
BEH(CETE) BAQRE L
BENSREENRTES
LEREBEAL HEER
R EMBE A -

BERI0EERTHHRESHE
TAENZHARZZE
B KR B AT 3L 10 5 1O & B
BHRTESFIEREEA
B G HEMBER LR
BIWA e

3)

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
purchase of mortgage loans by the Company from time to
time under the Mortgage Purchase Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
application for mortgage insurance cover from time to time

under the Mortgage Insurance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as primary dealer or selling group
member in the HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as a placing bank in the HK$20 Billion
Retail Bond Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or lead manager/co-lead
manager in one or more of the Company’s MBS issues,
including the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or dealer in the US$3 Billion
Medium Term Note Programme.
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On 21 April 2004, the Company entered into a lease for a
period of 6 years commencing on 1 January 2005 with
The Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) by which the
FSI let to the Company Suite 7902 on 79th Floor and the
whole of the 80th Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong. At the direction of the
FSI, the Company paid rental to the HKMA. In 2009,
the Company paid a total of HK$6.4 million (2008: HK$6.4
million) of rental to the HKMA.

With effect from 26 May 2009, the HKMA provided to the
Company the use of Suite 7807, 78th Floor, Two
International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong for a service fee. In 2009, the Company paid a
total of HK$0.3 million (2008: nil) of service fee to the
HKMA.

During the year, the HKMA provided a back-up site, with
respect to the period from 1 January 2009 to 6 December
2009, at 16th Floor, PCCW Tower, King’s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong, and with respect to the period from
7 December 2009 to 31 December 2009, at Unit 901,
9th Floor of the same building to the Company for a service
fee. In 2009, the Company paid a total of HK$0.3 million
(2008: HK$0.2 million) of service fee to the HKMA.

Members of the Citi group have entered into agreements
with the Company in respect of the matters set out in
paragraphs (3), (4), (5), (6), (7) and (8) above.

In 2009, the Company purchased about HK$173 million
of mortgage loans from the FSI (2008: HK$7 1 million).
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(14) On 30 September 2009, the Company entered into a
purchase agreement with, inter alia, Shinhan Mortgage
Second International Limited (as issuer), Shinhan Mortgage
Second Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. (as purchaser),
Shinhan Bank (as seller) and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Seoul Securities Branch (as
one of the joint arrangers) pursuant to which the Company
purchased from the issuer a US$400 million note backed
by mortgage loans originated by Shinhan Bank.

(15) In 2009, King & Wood was appointed as legal adviser for
providing Chinese legal advice and other legal services to
the Group and the total amount of legal fees of King &
Wood incurred was HK$0.9 million.

(b) Key management personnel
Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior
officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year

& comprises:
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FeRHMEHEERF  Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,120 13,036
B R R Post-employment benefits 942 817
14,062 13,853
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34. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE”) namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPEs. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right
to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to
the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the
fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and
the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPEs when the substance of the relationships between the
SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the
reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to
the consolidated statement of financial position. The following summarises
the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to
the SPEs that were derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial
position but were consolidated back to the consolidated statement of
financial position as a result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BRERIBELFME (F—-)ARRDAE HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited 59,829 82,702

Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 1,254,856 1,796,059
BEETHRARNRBERES Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs

(Fff 7 20(a)) (Note 20(a)) 1,314,685 1,878,761
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35. K 35. Commitments
(a) B (a) Capital
REE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FHET TFERT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BEHEBRETL Authorized but not

contracted for 19,643 19,616 19,352 19,616
(b) BEHE (b) Operating lease
REMBR - BRETAFHENLE Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
ALHMBELRNRRKERS AR operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed
BEAITWT as follows:
REE /NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WRAEYE Office premises
NER—F not later than one year 7,264 6,368 6,368 6,368
ZR—FR later than one year and
NERAFE not later than five years 306 6,368 - 6,368
7,570 12,736 6,368 12,736
2N ~ . .
36. TiiE R SEHS 36. Mortgage insurance business

RAFEZEBRBAREHEDERR - &£2  The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
RiaRE T - basis with its approved reinsurers.

MNIZEZEAF+-_F=+—8  BBRIZERAETE  As 31 December 2009, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$14.92
HB149 2B IL (ZZZT)\F : 98.3BEC) ©  billion (2008: HK$9.83 billion) of which HK$3.33 billion (2008: HK$4.12 billion)
Hh333EBT(ZET)\FE : 41.2(887T) 2 was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$11.59 billion
FRZEBREATNEESFRE  MALFTEE  (2008: HK$5.71 bilion) was retained by the Company.
TEEBRTS9EBIT(ZETN\F : 57.1F

BT HER -
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37. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by
way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance
with the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The
security trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes
will enforce the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant
SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor)
defaults in payment under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence
of an event of default in respect of any series of MBS.

AEE
The Group
2009 2008
Fi#T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBEE Assets pledged

$R1TE HR 17 3K Time deposits with banks 28,317 36,420
BHIEE Investment securities - 445,335
RIBERAES Mortgage portfolio 1,905,793 2,621,727
JiE WLF B, Interest receivable 267 653
1,934,377 3,104,135

BiRAEE Secured liabilities
B ETRIBE S (5E30) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 30) 2,020,394 3,225,624

EEMZBERAS BREFRDRIRMAHL
FErtmBEREa (ME34) - E%E%Tﬁbiéf

FESRERISE2REEENER

BINERREE (H5t26) -

AT
HeF

5708 B TTHE MfF KB HIR T IRITERF
RIBEREGORES

%.@ﬂ%%ﬁ%

BEERR _ZT-TFHA_tTHBA
=

HERNS PR

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded
in the SPE’s book (Note 34) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued
to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$5.7 million are pledged as security deposits with a
bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

38. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
20 April 2010.
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